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Statement Regarding Forward Looking Statements

This Form 10-K contains forward-looking statemewiithin the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Sectiona2ilie Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the "Exchange Act"). For this purpose, any stateisicontained herein that are not statementsrodrduor
historical fact may be deemed to be forward-loolstayements. Without limiting the foregoing, worigh
as "anticipates,” "expects," "intends," "plantilieves," "seeks," "estimates," variations of swands and
similar expressions are intended to identify suniwérd-looking statements. These statements dre no
guarantees of future performance and are subjadrtain risks, uncertainties and assumptionseteat
difficult to predict. Therefore, actual resultsutadiffer materially from those expressed or fagted in any
such forward-looking statements as a result obhgefactors, including those set forth in "Risk teas,”
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of FinarC@idition and Results of Operations," "Business! an
elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Readers are cautiow¢do place undue reliance on these forward-logki
statements.

Although we believe that expectations reflectethmforward-looking statements are reasonable, we
cannot guarantee future results, levels of actiggrformance or achievements. We expressly discay
obligation or undertaking to release publicly apgates or revisions to any forward-looking stateisien
contained herein to reflect any change in our etgiens with regard thereto or any change in eyents
conditions or circumstances on which any such staie is based. These forward-looking statemergbkyap
only as of the date of this Form 10-K or for stages incorporated by reference from our 2014 defai
proxy statement on Schedule 14A, as of the datieeoSchedule 14A.

Internet Site

Our Internet address is www.heska.com. Becaudeelieve it provides useful information in a cost-
effective manner to interested investors, via k @n our website our annual report on Form 10-kKgrtgprly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form & amendments to those reports filed or furnished
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchaketeare publicly available free of charge and whdve
are available as soon as reasonably practicalwéeslectronically file such material with, or fish it to, the
Securities Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). Infttran contained on our website is not a part o thi
annual report on Form 10-K.

PART I
Item 1. Business.

We develop, manufacture, market, sell and suppdrinary products. Our core focus is on the
canine and feline companion animal health markéisra/we strive to provide high value products.

Our business is composed of two reportable segm@ote Companion Animal Health and Other
Vaccines, Pharmaceuticals and Products. The Comg&nion Animal Health segment ("CCA") includes,
primarily for canine and feline use, blood testingtruments and supplies, digital imaging produstdtware
and services, and single use products and sersticdsas heartworm diagnostic tests, heartworm ptizee
products, allergy immunotherapy products and afiéegting. These products are sold directly to
veterinarians by us as well as through distributiElationships. The Other Vaccines, Pharmacestiadi
Products segment ("OVP") includes private labekirse and pharmaceutical production, primarily fattle
but also for other animals including small mammaid. OVP products are sold by third parties untierd
party labels. Please refer to Note 10 of our a&dditonsolidated financial statements filed herefath
financial information about each of our segments.



Our principal executive offices are located at 3R&@ky Mountain Avenue, Loveland, Colorado
80538, our telephone number is (970) 493-7272 amdnternet address is www.heska.com. We origynall
incorporated in California in 1988, and we subsetjyencorporated in Delaware in 1997.

Background

We were founded as Paravax, Inc. in 1988 and cdaeduesearch on vaccines to prevent infections
by parasites. We changed our name to Heska Cdiqoia 1995, completed our initial public offeritng
1997 and continued to be a research and develogoarged company, devoting substantial resourcéseto
research and development of innovative productthicompanion animal health market. In 2001 @GR2
we took steps to lower our expense base, largehtennal research and development. We subseguentl
continued to concentrate our efforts on operatimgrovements, such as enhancing the effectivenessrof
sales and marketing efforts and pursuing costieffaes, as well as seeking new product opporesitiith
third parties. We acquired a 54.6% interest intCod/eterinary USA, LLC in February 2013, which rked
our entry into the digital imaging market. In J@@l3, we sold certain non-core assets usefuhfor t
production of both bovine and feline vaccines tareb Animal Health ("Elanco"), a division of Elillyi and
Company.

Core Companion Animal Health Segment

We presently sell a variety of companion animalthgaroducts and services, among the most
significant of which are the following:

Veterinary Blood Testing and Other Non-Imaging Instments

We offer a line of veterinary blood testing andestimstruments, some of which are described below.
We also market and sell consumable supplies f@etistruments. Our line of veterinary instruments
includes the following:

* Blood Chemistry. The Element D& Veterinary Chemistry Analyzer (the "Element DC'aav
launched in October 2012. The Element DC is ag-Basse, robust system that uses dry slide
technology for blood chemistry and electrolyte gis@l and has the ability to run 22 tests at a
time with a single blood sample. Test slides amglable as both pre-packaged panels as well as
individual slides. The Element DC is faster and &a enhanced user interface compared to the
instrument it replaced, the DRI-CHEM 4000 Vetenin&hemistry Analyzer (the "DRI-CHEM
4000"). The DRI-CHEM 7000 Veterinary Chemistry Ayrer (the "DRI-CHEM 7000") is a
complementary chemistry offering, co-branded withJFFILM Corporation ("FUJIFILM"), with
higher throughput, multiple patient staging and&AT" feature which provides emergency
sample flexibility in critical cases. The Elem@&€, DRI-CHEM 7000 and DRI-CHEM 4000 all
utilize the same test slides. We are supplied thighElement DC, the DRI-CHEM 7000 and
affiliated test slides and supplies under a cotuel@greement with FUJIFILM.

* Hematology. The HEMATRUE Veterinary Hematology Analyzer is arsg-to-use blood
analyzer that measures such key parameters ashbitite cell count, red blood cell count,
platelet count and hemoglobin levels in animafsaddition, we continue to service and support
our previous hematology instrument, the HESKA CBIEVeterinary Hematology System.
We are supplied new instruments and affiliated eaégyand supplies of these products under a
contractual agreement with Boule Medical AB ("Bdlle



» Blood Gases and Electrolytes. The Element POC™ Blood Gas & Electrolyte Analyzer
("EPOC") is a handheld, wireless analyzer whiclivée$ rapid blood gas, electrolyte, metabolite,
and basic blood chemistry testing. EPOC featwasisdards with room temperature storage
which can offer results with less than 10of sample as well as WiFi and Bluetooth
connectivity. We began to ship EPOC units to ausis in October 2013. EPOC and affiliated
consumables and supplies are supplied to us uodéractual agreement with BBl Animal
Health Limited, a unit of Alere Inc. In additiowe continue to service and support our previous
blood gas and electrolyte instrument for which weesupplied affiliated consumables and
supplies under a contractual agreement with Rodhgrastics Corporation ("Roche").

* |V Pumps. The VET/IV 2.2 infusion pump is a compact, affortdaly pump that allows
veterinarians to easily provide regulated infussdfluids, drugs or nutritional products for their
patients.

Veterinary Imaging Instruments and Services

On February 24, 2013, we acquired a 54.6% intémgSuattro Veterinary USA, LLC, which was
subsequently renamed Heska Imaging US, LLC ("Hésleaying™) and operates only in the United States.
This transaction marked our entry into the veteyinianaging area. Heska Imaging's offerings in trisa
include:

Digital Radiography Solutions. Our digital radiography solutions are marketed sold under the
"Cuattro" brand name. We sell hardware includiittal radiography detectors, acquisition worksiati
equipment, positioning aides such as tunnels driddaviewing computers and other accessories aldtig
embedded software and support, data hosting amed sghvices. The CloudDR solution combines flat
panel digital radiography with web-based imageagjer The Cloudbah® archive is an automatic, secure,
web-based image storage solution designed to auerfvith the software we sell. ViewCldlids a PACS
(Picture Archival and Communications System) fanu@lbank for web or local viewing, reporting, plamgi
and email sharing of studies on internet devicedyuding personal computers, Mac desktop and plertab
systems, tablet devices, iP4dievices and smartphones. SupportCl8id a support package including call
center voice and remote diagnostics, recovery #mer gervices, such as the provision of warraniyted
loaner units, to support CloudDR, Cloudbank andanéoud.

We also sell mobile digital radiography productimarily for equine use. The Und'is a full
powered, seamlessly integrated, portable digit#ibgraphy generator with an embedded detector and
touchscreen computer based upon a patented ddstyratiro, LLC. The Slate’ Wireless features a 16 bit
detector for use with an existing generator ancctvebmmunicates wirelessly with a mobile, case-thase
direct sunlight readable display, including muttitth software and the ability to natively link tigidal
Imaging and Communication in Medicine, or DICOMn&s of all types as well as Cloudbank. Slat¥ 4
comes in a 19" model and a 12" model, both of whighhandheld, touchscreen, tablets with embedded
wireless communication, battery-powered and linesgr@d capabilities, and image acquisition and
communication functions.

Cuattro, LLC provides us with the hardware, sofevand support, data hosting and other services for
our digital radiography solutions under exclusivatcactual arrangements in the United States.

Ultrasound Systems. Our ultrasound products, including affiliated Ipes and peripherals, are
provided to us under an exclusive agreement witotesUSA ("Esaote"). We sell several different
ultrasound products with varying features and @poading price points, all under Esaote's tradeasamn
logos. These offerings include the MyLab 30 Gokt,\a compact, portable, high performance model
offering optional products for use with abdomirerdiac and small parts applications. The ultradou



products we sell generally seamlessly integrath witr Cloudbank and ViewCloud offerings discussed
above for image storing and viewing.

Point-of-Care Heartworm Diagnostic Tests

Heartworm infections of dogs and cats are causdtidoparasit®irofilariaimmitis. This parasitic
worm is transmitted in larval form to dogs and ¢htsugh the bite of an infected mosquito. Lardegelop
into adult worms that live in the pulmonary arteréand heart of the host, where they can causeuserio
cardiovascular, pulmonary, liver and kidney disea@ar canine and feline heartworm diagnostic teses
monoclonal antibodies or a recombinant heartwortigan, respectively, to detect heartworm antigens o
antibodies circulating in the blood of an infectadmal.

We currently market and sell heartworm diagnoststd for both dogs and cats. SOLO STEP CH for
dogs and SOLO STEP FH for cats are available intgaficare, single use formats that can be used by
veterinarians on site. We also offer SOLO STEPRz#th Test Strips, a rapid and simple point-of-care
antigen detection test for dogs that allows veserams in larger practices to run multiple samplethe same
time. We obtain SOLO STEP CH, SOLO STEP FH and SGITEP Batch Test Strips under a contractual
agreement with Quidel Corporation ("Quidel").

Heartworm Preventive Products

We have an agreement with Merck Animal Health, ia eiiVerck & Co., Inc., granting Merck
Animal Health the exclusive distribution and maikegtrights for our canine heartworm prevention preig
TRI-HEART Plus Chewable Tablets, ultimately soldtahrough veterinarians in the United States and
Canada. TRI-HEART Plus Chewable Tablets (ivermnégyirantel) are indicated for use as a monthly
preventive treatment of canine heartworm infectiad for treatment and control of ascarid and hooskwo
infections. We manufacture TRI-HEART Plus Chewaldblets at our Des Moines, lowa production
facility.

Allergy Products and Services

Allergy is common in companion animals, and it haen estimated to affect approximately 10% to
15% of dogs. Clinical symptoms of allergy are ahhe, but are often manifested as persistent anulise
skin disease in dogs and cats. Clinical manageofaitergic disease is problematic, as there daege
number of allergens that may give rise to theselitioms. Although skin testing is often regardedtze
most accurate diagnostic procedure, such testbeaainful, subjective and inconvenient. The ditfeness
of the immunotherapy that is prescribed to trelargic disease is inherently limited by inaccuragiethe
diagnostic process.

Our ALLERCEPT Definitive Allergen Panels provideetmost accurate determination of which we
are aware of the specific allergens to which amahisuch as a dog, cat or horse, is reacting. pahels use
a highly specific recombinant version of the natigk receptor to test the serum of potentiallgwagic
animals for IgE directed against a panel of knoWlgrgens. A typical test panel consists primaofyarious
pollen, grass, mold, insect and mite allergense {Et results serve as the basis for prescription
ALLERCEPT Therapy Shots and ALLERCEPT Therapy Drop# operate veterinary laboratories in
Loveland, Colorado and Fribourg, Switzerland whiclh offer blood testing using our ALLERCEPT
Definitive Allergen Panels.

We sell kits to conduct blood testing using our ARCEPT Definitive Allergen Panels to third-
party veterinary diagnostic laboratories outsidéhefUnited States. We also sell products to scieethe
presence of allergen-specific IgE to these custemave sell kits to conduct preliminary blood tegtusing
products based on our ALLERCEPT Definitive Allergeanels as well as a similar test requiring less
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technical sophistication, our E-SCREEN Test. Angtiasting positive for allergen-specific IgE usthgse
screening tests are candidates for further evaluaising our ALLERCEPT Definitive Allergen Panels.

Veterinarians who use our ALLERCEPT Definitive Atlen Panels often purchase our
ALLERCEPT Therapy Shots for those animals with fiesitest results. These prescription immunothgrap
treatment sets are formulated specifically for ealtdrgic animal and contain only the allergens/toch the
animal has significant levels of IgE antibodiedieTprescription formulations are administered sedes of
injections, with doses increasing over several mgrtb ameliorate the allergic condition of thenaaili
Immunotherapy is generally continued for an exterittee. Immunotherapy delivered by injection is
referred to as subcutaneous immunotherapy. We cdigne, feline and equine subcutaneous
immunotherapy treatment products. In February 2@&2announced we had licensed intellectual prgpert
for a proprietary, sublingual (administered undher tongue) therapy treatment for pets sufferingp wit
allergies — now known as ALLERCEPT Therapy Droj¢e believe our ALLERCEPT Therapy Drops offer
a convenient alternative to subcutaneous injecttmreby enhancing the likelihood of pet owner cliamge.

Other Core Companion Animal Health Sngle Use Products. We also sell other products in our Core
Companion Animal Health segment. For example, @llelEsSR.D. Reagent Packs used to detect
microalbuminuria, the most sensitive indicatoreial damage, to VCA Antech, Inc. for use in iteveiary
diagnostic laboratories.

Other Vaccines, Pharmaceuticals and Products Segmien

We developed a line of bovine vaccines that aenBed by the United States Department of
Agriculture ("USDA"). Historically, the largestsiributor of these vaccines was Agri Laboratorigd,
("AgriLabs"), who sold these vaccines primarily enthe Titaniurhl and MasterGuarfd brands. In
November 2013, AgriLabs assigned the long-termeagent with us related to these vaccines to, and the
agreement was assumed by, Eli Lilly and Companyi Cily") acting through Elanco.

We manufacture biological and pharmaceutical prtedior a number of other animal health
companies. We manufacture products for animalksrdttan cattle including horses and small mammals.
Our offerings range from providing complete turnleeyvices which include research, licensing, prodoc
labeling and packaging of products to providing ang of these services as needed by our customersia
as validation support and distribution services.

Marketing, Sales and Customer Support

We estimate that there are approximately 53,00érwetrians in the United States whose practices
are devoted principally to small animal medicifighese veterinarians practice in approximately 23,00
clinics in the United States. In 2013, our produgere sold to approximately 13,000 such clinicthan
United States. Veterinarians may obtain our prtsideectly from us or indirectly through other&ll our
Core Companion Animal Health products ultimately sold primarily to or through veterinarians. lamg
cases, veterinarians will markup their costs toeth@ user. The acceptance of our products byimaténs
is critical to our success.

We currently market our Core Companion Animal Heailtoducts in the United States to
veterinarians through an outside field organizatetelephone sales force, independent third-party
distributors, as well as through trade shows aimd pdvertising and through other distribution tiglaships,
such as Merck Animal Health in the case of our tvg@m preventive. Our outside field organization
currently consists of 36 individuals in varioustpaof the United States. Our inside sales foreesists of 18
persons.



We have a staff dedicated to customer and produypgtast in our Core Companion Animal Health
segment including veterinarians, technical supgpecialists and service technicians. Individuasifour
product development group may also be used aaressin responding to certain product inquiries.

Internationally, we market our Core Companion Arlildaalth products to veterinarians primarily
through third-party veterinary diagnostic laborasyindependent third-party distributors and Nasakgro
K.K., Tokyo ("Novartis Japan"). These entitiesitgly provide customer support. Novartis Japan
exclusively markets and distributes SOLO STEP CbBkipan.

All OVP products are marketed and sold by thirdiparunder third-party labels.

We grant third parties rights to our intellectuedgerty as well as our products, with our
compensation often taking the form of royalties/andilestone payments.

Manufacturing

The majority of our revenue is from proprietary guots manufactured by third parties. Third parties
manufacture our veterinary instruments, includifiji@ed consumables and supplies, as well asrothe
products including key components of our heartwpnimt-of-care diagnostic tests. Our chemistry
instruments and affiliated supplies are manufadtureder contract with FUJIFILM. Our hematology
instruments and affiliated supplies are manufadtureder contract with Boule. Our digital radiogmgp
products are supplied under contract with Cuattkd;, which typically buys its hardware products and
components from third parties. Our ultrasound pobsl are supplied under a contract with Esaote Ukdy
components of our heartworm point-of-care diagredssts are manufactured under a contract with&uid
We manufacture and supply Quidel with certain caitraw materials and perform the final packaging
operations for these products. Our facility in Déaines, lowa is a USDA, Food and Drug Administati
("FDA"), and Drug Enforcement Agency ("DEA") liceas biological and pharmaceutical manufacturing
facility. This facility currently has the capactty manufacture more than 50 million doses of vae@ach
year. We expect that we will, for the foreseedbtare, manufacture most or all of our pharmacelitnd
biological products at this facility, as well asshor all of our recombinant proteins and otheippetary
reagents for our diagnostic tests. We currentlgufecture our canine heartworm prevention produat,
allergy treatment products and all our OVP segrpemducts at this facility. Our OVP segment's costs
purchase products in both finished and bulk format] we perform all phases of manufacturing, inicigd
growth of the active bacterial and viral agentsril filling, lyophilization and packaging at thscility. We
manufacture our various allergy diagnostic prodattsur Des Moines facility, our Loveland faciliéyd our
Fribourg facility. We believe the raw materials fsoducts we manufacture are available from mioaa t
one source.

Product Development

We are committed to providing innovative producsddress health needs of companion animals.
We may obtain such products from external souedsyrnal collaboration or internal research and
development.

We are committed to identifying external producpogtunities and creating business and technical
collaborations that lead to high value veterinagdpicts. We believe that our active participation
scientific networks and our reputation for invegtin research enhances our ability to acquire eater
product opportunities. We have collaborated, abehid to continue to do so, with a number of corigman
and universities. Examples of such collaborationkide:

* Quidel for the development of SOLO STEP CH Casse8®LO STEP CH Batch Test Strips
and SOLO STEP FH Cassettes;



» Boule for the development of veterinary applicasiéor the HEMATRUE Veterinary
Hematology Analyzer and associated reagents; and

* FUJIFILM for the development of veterinary applioats for the Element DC Veterinary
Chemistry Analyzer and associated slides and segpli

Internal research and development is managed aseliy-case basis. We employ individuals with
microbiology, immunology, genetics, biochemistryglatular biology, parasitology as well as vetennar
expertise and will form multidisciplinary product¢sociated teams as appropriate. We incurred egperfis
$1.7 million, $1.0 million and $1.5 million in theears ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013,
respectively, in support of our research and deprebmt activities.

Intellectual Property

We believe that patents, trademarks, copyrightsodimer proprietary rights are important to our
business. We also rely upon trade secrets, knaw-bontinuing technological innovations and licegsi
opportunities to develop and maintain our compegiposition. The proprietary technologies of oFO
segment are primarily protected through trade s@ecogection of, for example, our manufacturinggesses
in this area.

We actively seek patent protection both in the &thiBtates and abroad. Our issued and pending
patent portfolios primarily relate to heartworm toh flea control, allergy, infectious disease siaes,
diagnostic and detection tests, immunomodulatostfumentation, nutrition, pain control and vaccine
delivery technologies. As of December 31, 2013pweed, co-owned or had rights to 185 issued U.S.
patents expiring at various dates from January 20May 2028 and had no pending U.S. patent
applications. Applications corresponding to pegdihS. applications have been or will be filed they
countries. Our corresponding foreign patent pbdfas of December 31, 2013 included 141 issueeniat
and 4 pending applications in various foreign cdastexpiring at various dates from January 201Md&och
2026.

We also have obtained exclusive and non-exclugieases for numerous other patents held by
academic institutions and for profit companies.

Seasonality

In 2013, our fourth quarter results were signifibastronger than those for any other quarter. We
expect this trend to continue in the future, priitgaas this is our understanding of the historieults at
Heska Imaging and other digital imaging businesses.

Government Regulation

Although the majority of our revenue is from théesaf unregulated items, many of our products or
products that we may develop are, or may be, sutjeextensive regulation by governmental authesitn
the United States, including the USDA and the FBd by similar agencies in other countries. These
regulations govern, among other things, the devadoq, testing, manufacturing, labeling, storage; pr
market approval, advertising, promotion, sale astfidution of our products. Satisfaction of these
requirements can take several years to achievéharitme needed to satisfy them may vary substbntia
based on the type, complexity and novelty of tleelpct. Any product that we develop must receive al
relevant regulatory approval or clearances, if ireagl) before it may be marketed in a particulamtou The
following summarizes the major U.S. government agemthat regulate animal health products:



 USDA. Vaccines and certain single use, point-of-céagribstics are considered veterinary
biologics and are therefore regulated by the Cdoteveterinary Biologics, or CVB, of the
USDA. Industry data indicate that it takes appmadely four years and in excess of $1.0 million
to license a conventional vaccine for animals flmasic research through licensing. In contrast
to vaccines, single use, point-of-care diagnosiiostypically be licensed by the USDA in about
two years, at considerably less cost. Howeverinas or diagnostics that use innovative
materials, such as those resulting from recombib&ia technology, usually require additional
time to license. The USDA licensing process ineslthe submission of several data packages.
These packages include information on how the priodill be manufactured, information on the
efficacy and safety of the product in laboratorg target animal studies and information on
performance of the product in field conditions.

 FDA. Pharmaceutical products, which typically inclsgathetic compounds, are approved and
monitored by the Center for Veterinary Medicindgltd FDA. Industry data indicate that
developing a new drug for animals requires appratéthy 4 to 6 years from the initiation of a
regulatory process to market introduction and captgoximately $4 to $6 million. Of this time,
approximately three years is spent in animal studie the regulatory review process. However,
unlike human drugs, neither preclinical studiesansequential phase system of studies are
required. Rather, for animal drugs, studies féetgeand efficacy may be conducted immediately
in the species for which the drug is intended. sThiiere is no required phased evaluation of drug
performance, and the Center for Veterinary Medigiilereview data at appropriate times in the
drug development process. In addition, the tinet@st for developing companion animal drugs
may be significantly less than for drugs for liaedt animals, which are estimated to be
approximately 10 to 12 years from the initiatioraafegulatory process to market introduction
and may have costs of approximately $10 to $12anill

» EPA. Products that are applied topically to animal®@remises to control external parasites
are regulated by the Environmental Protection Ageac EPA.

After we have received regulatory licensing or appt for our products, numerous regulatory
requirements typically apply. Among the conditidoscertain regulatory approvals is the requiretibat
our manufacturing facilities or those of our thpdrty manufacturers conform to current Good Manufétg
Practices or other manufacturing regulations, winclude requirements relating to quality contnotla
guality assurance as well as maintenance of reardslocumentation. The USDA, FDA and foreign
regulatory authorities strictly enforce manufagatgrregulatory requirements through periodic inspest
and/or reports.

A number of our animal health products are not latgd. For example, certain products such as our
ALLERCEPT panels are not regulated by either th®RA®r FDA. Similarly, none of our veterinary
instruments requires regulatory approval to be etadk and sold in the United States.

We have pursued regulatory approval outside théedrBtates based on market demographics of
foreign countries. For marketing outside the Whi&tates, we are subject to foreign regulatoryirements
governing regulatory licensing and approval for gnahour products. Licensing and approval by
comparable regulatory authorities of foreign co@stmust be obtained before we can market prodhicts
those countries. Product licensing approval preegand requirements vary from country to countd/the
time required for such approvals may differ subiaty from that required in the United States. ‘d&not
be certain that approval of any of our productsrie country will result in approvals in any otheuntry.
To date, we or our distributors have sought reguyaaipproval for certain of our products in Canaslaich
is governed by the Canadian Center for Veterinaojogics, or CCVB; in Japan, which is governed bg t
Japanese Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Ergds, or MAFF; in Australia, which is governedtbg
Australian Department of Agriculture, Fisheries &udestry, or ADAFF; in South Africa, which is ganed
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by the Republic of South Africa Department of Agttare, or RSADA; and in certain other countries
requiring such approval.

Core Companion Animal Health products previousgcdssed which have received regulatory
approval in the United States and/or elsewhersamrenarized below.

Products Country Regulated Agency Status
ALLERCEPT Allergy Treatment Sets United States| Yes USDA Licensed
SOLO STEP CH United States| Yes USDA Licensed
EU No-in most countries
Canada Yes CCcvB Licensed
Japan Yes MAFF Licensed
Australia Yes ADAFF Licensed
SOLO STEP CH Batch Test Strips United States| Yes USDA Licensed
Canada Yes CCvB Licensed
SOLO STEP FH United States| Yes USDA Licensed
Canada Yes CCcvB Licensed
Australia Yes ADAFF Licensed
TRI-HEART Plus Heartworm Preventive United States| Yes FDA Licensed
Japan Yes MAFF Licensed
South Korea | Yes NVRQS | Licensed
Competition

Our market is intensely competitive. Our compesiioclude independent animal health companies
and major pharmaceutical companies that have amiesdth divisions. We also compete with indepehden
third-party distributors, including distributors wisell products under their own private labelsthim point-
of-care diagnostic testing market, our major compestinclude IDEXX Laboratories, Inc. ("IDEXX"),
Abaxis, Inc. ("Abaxis") and Synbiotics Corporatig®ynbiotics"), a unit of Zoetis Inc. ("Zoetis"he
products manufactured by our OVP segment for satilbd parties compete with similar products oéig by
a number of other companies, some of which havstaobally greater financial, technical, reseanctl a
other resources than us and may have more esetlisarketing, sales, distribution and service
organizations than our OVP segment's customersap@nies with a significant presence in the aninealth
market such as Bayer AG, CEVA Santé Animale, Blyl.Merck & Co., Inc. ("Merck"), Novartis AG,
sanofi-aventis, Vétoquinol S.A., Virbac S.A. ancelie may be marketing or developing products that
compete with our products or would compete withtliesuccessfully developed. These and other
competitors and potential competitors may havetsmbially greater financial, technical, researct ather
resources and larger, more established markethes, distribution and service organizations tharde.

Our competitors may offer broader product lines laagke greater name recognition than we do.

Environmental Regulation

In connection with our product development actatand manufacturing of our biological,
pharmaceutical and diagnostic and detection preduat are subject to federal, state and local laviss,
regulations and policies governing the use, gelmgratnanufacture, storage, handling and disposeédhin
materials, biological specimens and wastes. Alghoue believe that we have complied with these laws
regulations and policies in all material respecis bave not been required to take any significatib@ to
correct any noncompliance, we may be requireddorisignificant costs to comply with environmerdaat
health and safety regulations in the future. Aliijfo we believe that our safety procedures for hagdind
disposing of such materials comply with the staddrescribed by state and federal regulationg;jshef
accidental contamination or injury from these matercannot be eliminated. In the event of such an
accident, we could be held liable for any damabasresult and any such liability could exceed our
resources.



Employees

As of December 31, 2013, we and our subsidiarigd@rad 290 people, of whom 125 were focused
in production and technical and logistical servigesluding instrumentation service, 112 in satearketing
and customer support, 47 in general administrareices, such as accounting, and 6 in product
development. We believe that our ability to atti@ad retain skilled personnel is critical to oucsess.

None of our employees is covered by a collectivgdiaing agreement, and we believe our employee
relations are good.

Where You Can Find Additional Information

You may review a copy of this annual report on FAG¥K, including exhibits and any schedule filed
therewith, and obtain copies of such materialg@sgibed rates, at the Securities and Exchange
Commission's Public Reference Room in Room 1580,FL8treet, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549-0102. You
may obtain information on the operation of the RuBkeference Room by calling the Securities and
Exchange Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330. The Sexuuahd Exchange Commission maintains a website
(http://www.sec.gov) that contains reports, prorg information statements and other informatiorarding
registrants, such as Heska Corporation, that i@etenically with the Securities and Exchange Cassion.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Our executive officers and their ages as of Marth2B14 are as follows:

Name Age Position

Robert B. Grieve, Ph.D. 62  Chair of the Board ahieCExecutive Officef)

Kevin S. Wilson 42 President and Chief Operatintjoc@f®

Jason A. Napolitano 45 Executive Vice Presidentefdfinancial Officer and
Secretary

Michael J. McGinley, Ph.D. 53 President, Biologic& Pharmaceuticals

Steven M. Eyl 48 Executive Vice President, ComnarOiperations

Nancy Wisnewski, Ph.D. 51 Executive Vice Presidenbduct Development and
Customer Support

Steven M. Asakowicz 48 Executive Vice Presidentn@anion Animal Health
Sales

Rodney A. Lippincott 40 Executive Vice Presidernganion Animal Health
Sales

Robert B. Grieve, Ph.D., one of our founders, currently serves as Chiefchtive Officer and Chair
of the Board. Dr. Grieve was named Chief Execub¥icer effective January 1, 1999, Vice Chairman
effective March 1992 and Chairman of the Boardatite May 2000. Dr. Grieve also served as Chief
Scientific Officer from December 1994 to Januar@94.@nd Vice President, Research and Development, fr
March 1992 to December 1994. He has been a meohloeir Board of Directors since 1990. He holds a
Ph.D. degree from the University of Florida and MaBd B.S. degrees from the University of Wyoming.

Kevin S. Wilson was appointed our President and Chief Operatitiig€dfin February 2013.
Mr. Wilson is a founder, member and officer of GuatLLC. Since 2008, he has been involved in
developing technologies for radiographic imagingw@uattro, LLC and as a founder of Cuattro Sofewar
LLC, Cuattro Medical, LLC and Cuattro Veterinarn),C. Mr. Wilson served on the board of various
private, non-profit, and educational organizatibmsn 2005 to 2011. He was a founder of Sound
Technologies, Inc., a diagnostic imaging compamy,996. After Sound Technologies, Inc. was sold@A
Antech, Inc. in 2004, Mr. Wilson served as Chightgy Officer for VCA Antech, Inc. until 2006.
Mr. Wilson attended Saddleback College.
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Jason A. Napolitano was appointed Executive Vice President and Chirgdri€ial Officer in May
2002. He was appointed our Secretary in Februa®®2 He also served as our Secretary from May 2002
December 2006. Prior to joining us formally, hesvaefinancial consultant. From 1990 to 2001,
Mr. Napolitano held various positions at CreditsSei First Boston, an investment bank, includingVic
President in health care investment banking anddir in mergers and acquisitions. He holds a @egree
from Yale University.

Michae J. McGinley, Ph.D. was appointed President, Biologicals & Pharmacalgim February
2013. He previously served as President and @pefating Officer from January 2009 to February201
Vice President, Global Operations from April thraugecember 2008, Vice President, Operations and
Technical Affairs and General Manager, Heska Dembkfrom January 2002 to April 2008 and in other
positions beginning in June 1997. Prior to joinihg Company, Dr. McGinley held positions with Baye
Animal Health and Fort Dodge Laboratories. He hdtth.D. and M.S. degrees in Immunobiology from lowa
State University and successfully completed theahted Management Program at the Harvard Business
School in 2008.

Seven M. Eyl has served as our Executive Vice President, Comat@perations since May 2013.
Mr. Eyl was a principal of Eyl Business Servicespasulting firm, from January 2012 to May 2013e \Was
President of Sound Technologies, Inc. ("Sound'infN00 to 2011, including after Sound's acquisibgn
VCA Antech, Inc. in 2004. Mr. Eyl has an extendbaekground in medical technology sales. He is a
graduate of Indiana University.

Nancy Wisnewski, Ph.D. was appointed Executive Vice President, Produeeld@ment and
Customer Support in April 2011. She served as Piasident, Product Development and Technical
Customer Service from December 2006 to April 20Edom January 2006 to November 2006,

Dr. Wisnewski was Vice President, Research and Dpueent. Dr. Wisnewski held various positions in
Heska's Research and Development organization bat®@93 and 2005. She holds a Ph.D. in
Parasitology/Biochemistry from the University of tmDame and a B.S. in Biology from Lafayette Cgdle

Seven M. Asakowicz was appointed Executive Vice President, CompaAitimal Health Sales in
February 2013. From July 2011 to February 2013ydeemployed by Cuattro, LLC as Vice President,
Sales — US Veterinary and sold exclusively on HedfaCuattro Veterinary USA, LLC. Mr. Asakowicz
previously worked as Sales Director for Sound Tetdgies, Inc. ("Sound") from November 2002 to June
2011, including after Sound was acquired by VCAg&&t, Inc. in 2004. Prior to entering the animalitie
market, Mr. Asakowicz spent 3.5 years employed ijttsMicro Software, Inc. as a Sales Manager and
spent 7.5 years employed by AirTouch Cellular aadTrel Cellular (currently Verizon Wireless) as a
Corporate Account Executive. Mr. Asakowicz holdB.A. degree from San Diego State University.

Rodney A. Lippincott was appointed Executive Vice President, CompaAimal Health Sales in
February 2013. From July 2011 to February 2013ydeemployed by Cuattro, LLC as Vice President,
Sales — US Veterinary and sold exclusively on HedfaCuattro Veterinary USA, LLC. Mr. Lippincottetd
various positions including Sales Director for Sodmechnologies, Inc., a unit of VCA Antech, Inecgrh
September 2007 to June 2011. Prior to enteringnimeal health market, Mr. Lippincott spent 13.%ange
employed by Smith Micro Software, Inc. and heldipposs including US and International Sales Manager
and Director of Marketing. Mr. Lippincott attend8dddleback College and completed the Executive
Education Marketing Management Program at Starifongtersity, Graduate School of Business.

@ Dr. Grieve is to assume the title "Executive Clodithe Board" immediately following the filing
of this 10-K with the SEC. Dr. Grieve's title clggal from "Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer" to "Chair of the Board and Chief Executi@éficer" in February 2014 due to a change in gtals
approved by our Board of Directors at that time.
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@ Mr. Wilson is to become Chief Executive OfficedaPresident of the Company immediately
following the filing of this 10-K with the SEC.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our future operating results may vary substanti@tyn period to period due to a number of factors,
many of which are beyond our control. The follogvifiscussion highlights some of these factors had t
possible impact of these factors on future resfltsperations. The risks and uncertainties desdrielow
are not the only ones we face. Additional risksiocertainties not presently known to us or thatieem to
be currently immaterial also may impair our businegerations. If any of the following factors adty
occur, our business, financial condition or resaftsperations could be harmed. In that caseptice of our
Public Common Stock could decline and you couldeeigmce losses on your investment.

Our February 2013 acquisition of a 54.6% majoritgterest (the "Acquisition”) in Cuattro
Veterinary USA, LLC, which has been renamed Heskadging US, LLC, is subject to various puts and
calls and other provisions which could be detrimahto the interests of our shareholders.

Under the Amended and Restated Operating Agreeofi¢tiska Imaging US, LLC (the "Operating
Agreement") for up to 18 months following the Acsjtion, the unit holders of the 45.4% of Heska Imgg
we do not own (the "Imaging Minority") may repursleaour 54.6% interest in Heska Imaging at a premium
to our Acquisition purchase price under a call@ptive have granted the Imaging Minority. Throuigé t
first year anniversary of the Acquisition, suchueghase could have been made at 1.3 times ourgaech
price and following the first year anniversary loé tAcquisition and through the 18-month anniversdire
Acquisition, such repurchase may be made at lrdéstiour purchase price. Furthermore, the Imaging
Minority may deliver any Heska shares resultingrfrand held since the Acquisition as consideratioth
such shares to be valued based on market valbheugh not less than $5 per share. Should the hrgagi
Minority exercise this call, it could be signifidhndisruptive to our business and if Heska Imagiegresents
a significant portion of our revenue and earningh@ time of such exercise, our stock price caigdine
significantly following such exercise. Furthermgosbould Heska stock have appreciated significatitly
Imaging Minority might not have to repay some droélthe cash we paid in the Acquisition, or evetfiver
all the shares we issued in the Acquisition. Iditoh, if our stock price has declined below $% gleare
prior to the time of exercise, we may not realtze full economic premium (1.45 at this point), aya
premium, anticipated in the repurchase. In additshould our stock price decline enough, we cbeld
placed in a position where the repurchase is @canomic discount to our purchase price.

Under the Operating Agreement, should Heska Imagiegt certain performance criteria, the
Imaging Minority has been granted a put optionetibss some or all of the Imaging Minority's poaitiin
Heska Imaging following the audit of our financ&tements for 2015, 2016 and 2017. Based on Heska
Imaging's current ownership position, this put opttould require us to deliver either up to $17illion
following calendar year 2015, $25.5 million follavg calendar year 2016 or $36.9 million followindecalar
year 2017 - as well as 25% of Heska Imaging's ¢asy applicable payment in aggregate to be defasetthe
"Put Payment") to acquire the outstanding minaritgrest in Heska Imaging. While we have the right
deliver up to 55% of the consideration in our Palommon Stock under certain circumstances, sodk st
is to be valued based on 90% of market value (@@ivVery Stock Value") and is limited to approxirabt
650 thousand shares in any case. If the DeliveagkSv/alue is less than the market value of ouriub
Common Stock at the time of the Acquisition, wendd have the right to deliver any Public Commonc&to
as consideration. Cash required under any Put @atyoould put a significant strain on our finangaskition
or require us to raise additional capital. Thered guarantee that additional capital will be ladé in such
a circumstance on reasonable terms, if at all. nvelg be unable to obtain debt financing, the publickets
may be unreceptive to equity financing and we natybe able to obtain financing from other alterveti
sources, such as private equity. Any debt finandfmavailable, may include restrictive covenaantsl high
interest rates and any equity financing would likeé¢ dilutive to stockholders in this scenarioadiditional
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funds are required and are not available, it wiikkly have a material adverse effect on our bussne
financial condition and our ability to continueagoing concern.

Under the Operating Agreement, should Heska Imagfiegt certain performance criteria, and the
Imaging Minority fail to exercise an applicable potsell us all of the Imaging Minority's positiomHeska
Imaging following the audit of our financial statents for 2015, 2016 and 2017, we would have aogsibn
to purchase all, but not less than all, of the limgdJinority's position in Heska Imaging. Basedtaska
Imaging's current ownership position, exercisirig tall option could require us to deliver up to
$19.6 million following calendar year 2015, $29.4lion following calendar year 2016 or $42.4 millio
following calendar year 2017 - as well as 25% o$kéelmaging's cash (any applicable payment in agdee
to be defined as the "Call Payment") to acquireotitistanding minority interest in Heska Imaginghil&' we
have the right to deliver up to 55% of the consatien in our Public Common Stock under certain
circumstances, such stock is to be valued bas®@®%nof market value (the "Delivery Stock Value"das
limited to approximately 650 thousand shares in@se. If the Delivery Stock Value is less thamnarket
value of our stock at the time of the Acquisitisre do not have the right to deliver any Public Camm
Stock as consideration. If we believe it is ddd@ao exercise any one of these calls, cash redjuinder the
Call Payment could put a significant strain on fimancial position or require us to raise additiorepital.
There is no guarantee that additional capital bellavailable in such a circumstance on reasonebiest if at
all. If we believe it is desirable to exercise angh call, determine we are unable to economidialiynce
the Call Payment and do not exercise the callraswlt, we could be subject to a more expensive Put
Payment less than a year in the future. In tliuonstance, unless there is a significant changeiin
financial position or market conditions, such a Payment could have a material adverse effect on ou
business, financial condition and our ability tmtioue as a going concern.

Under and as defined in the Operating Agreemepoyldhwe undergo a change in control prior to the
end of 2017, the Imaging Minority will be entitléal sell their Heska Imaging units to us for casthat
highest call value they otherwise could have ole@ifthe "Change in Control Payment"). If Heskading
meets certain minimum performance criteria, thiblvé $42.4 million as well as 25% of Heska Imagsng
cash until at least the end of 2015. The Chang@gointrol Payment may materially decrease the istere
third parties in acquiring the Company or a mayooit the Company's shares, which could otherwise ha
occurred at a significant premium to the Compatigs current market price for the benefit of somalbof
our shareholders. This could make some investssslikely to buy and hold our stock.

Under the terms of the Operating Agreement, Hesiaging will be managed by a three-person
board of managers, two of which are to be appoibtedeska Corporation and one of which is to be
appointed by Kevin S. Wilson, who has been Heska@ation's President and Chief Operating Officer
since the Acquisition closing, is to be Heska Coafion's Chief Executive Officer and President irdiagely
following the filing of this 10-K with the SEC ansl a founder of Heska Imaging. The current bodrd o
managers consists of Robert B. Grieve, Ph.D., HEskporation's current Chair and Chief Executivédef
and who is to be Executive Chair immediately folilegvthe filing of this 10-K with the SEC, Mr. Wilsaand
Jason A. Napolitano, Heska Corporation's Execufige President, Chief Financial Officer and Seaneta
Until the earlier of (1) our acquiring 100% of theits of Heska Imaging pursuant to the puts ancits
discussed above or (2) the sixth anniversary o&tiwiisition, Heska Imaging may only take the fwoiloy
actions, among others, by unanimous consent didhed of managers: (i) issue securities, (ii) incur
guarantee, prepay, refinance, renew, modify ormektiebt, (iii) enter into material contracts, (e or
terminate an officer or amend the terms of theipleyment, (v) make a distribution other than adax
liquidation distribution, (vi) enter into a matdracquisition or disposition arrangement or a merga)
lease or acquire an interest in real propertyi)(@@nvert or reorganize Heska Imaging, or (ix) achds
certificate of formation or the Heska Imaging Agresnt. This unanimous consent provision may hioder
ability to optimize the value of its investmentHieska Imaging in certain circumstances.
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Mr. Wilson's employment agreement with us acknogéedthat Mr. Wilson has business interests in
Cuattro, LLC, Cuattro Software, LLC, Cuattro Medjda.C and Cuattro Veterinary, LLC which may reqgiir
a portion of his time, resources and attentionisndorking hours. If Mr. Wilson is distracted byesse or
other business interests, he may not contributeuash as he otherwise would have to enhancing our
business, to the detriment of our shareholder valMie Wilson, Mrs. Wilson and trusts for their kdhren and
family own a majority interest in Cuattro Veterigat LC and Cuattro Medical, LLC. In addition, imcling
shares held by Mrs. Wilson and by trusts for theelfieof Mr. and Mrs. Wilson's children and family,

Mr. Wilson also owns a 100% interest in Cuattro{, lthe largest supplier to Heska Imaging. Cuatitd@;
owns a 100% interest in Cuattro Software, LLC. M/khie terms of both the Amended and Restated Maste
License Agreement and the Supply Agreement betieska Imaging and Cuattro, LLC were negotiated at
arm's length as part of the Acquisition, Mr. Wildues an interest in these agreements and any tiche a
resources devoted to monitoring and overseeingéhasionship may prevent us from deploying sunteti

and resources on more productive matters.

Since the Acquisition closed, Cuattro, LLC chargttka Imaging $6.8 million, primarily related to
digital imaging products, for which there is an arging supply contract with minimum purchase
obligations, software and services as well as atperating expenses provided for under a licensseagent
and a supply agreement, respectively; Heska Caiporeharged Heska Imaging $2.2 million, primarily
related to sales expenses; Heska Corporation aegeth Cuattro, LLC $140 thousand, primarily related
facility usage and other services.

At December 31, 2013, Heska Imaging had a $1.4amiliote receivable, including accrued interest,
from Cuattro Veterinary, LLC, which is due on Marth, 2016; Heska Imaging has accounts receivabie fr
Cuattro Software, LLC of $892 thousand; Heska Crapon had accounts receivable from Heska Imagfng o
$3.3 million, including accrued interest; Heska @wation had net accounts receivable from Cuatir@ of
$110 thousand; Heska Imaging had net accountsvedateifrom Cuattro, LLC of $198 thousand. All mesi
owed accrue interest at the same interest rateaHeskporation pays under its credit and securitgegent
with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association ("WeHargo") once past due with the exception of the no
receivable, which accrues at this rate to its nigtdate.

Mrs. Wilson, Clint Roth, DVM, Mr. Asakowicz, Mr. ppincott, Mr. Wilson and Cuattro, LLC own
approximately 29.75%, 8.39%, 4.09%, 3.07%, 0.05%&05% of Heska Imaging, respectively, each are a
member of Heska Imaging, and each have an interéds¢ puts and calls discussed above. If Mr. @ils
Mr. Asakowicz or Mr. Lippincott is distracted byebe holdings or interests, they may not contribstenuch
as they otherwise would have to enhancing our legsirto the detriment of our shareholder valueilé/the
Operating Agreement was negotiated at arm's leasgtbart of the Acquisition, and requires that nointhe
members shall cause Heska Imaging to operate sisdss in any manner other than the ordinary cafrse
business, any time and resources devoted to mimgitand overseeing this relationship may preveritara
deploying such time and resources on more prodaotiatters.

In addition, like any acquisition, if Heska Imagisignificantly underperforms our financial
expectations, it may serve to diminish rather thalnance shareholder value.

We have historically not consistently generated ifiwe cash flow from operations, may need
additional capital and any required capital may nbé available on reasonable terms or at all.

If our actual performance deviates from our opatgfilan, we may be required to raise additional
capital in the future. If necessary, we expectise these additional funds by borrowing underreuolving
line of credit, the increased sale of customerdsathe sale of equity securities or the issuahoew term
debt secured by the same assets as the term Ibéatswe fully repaid in 2010. There is no guarartteat
additional capital will be available from these gm@s on reasonable terms, if at all, and certathede
sources may require approval by existing lendétmds we expect to be available under our existing
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revolving line of credit may not be available arndey lenders could refuse to provide us with adddl debt
financing. Financial institutions and other poigninterested parties may not be interested ichpasing our
customer leases on economic terms, or at all. plléc markets may be unreceptive to equity finagsiand
we may not be able to obtain additional privateityqar debt financing. Any equity financing wodiely

be dilutive to stockholders and additional debaficing, if available, may include restrictive coaats and
increased interest rates that would limit our auttyeplanned operations and strategies. We belieeeredit
markets are particularly restrictive and it maynare difficult to obtain funding versus recent bigt
Furthermore, even if additional capital is avaigglit may not be of the magnitude required to noeetneeds
under these or other scenarios. If additional $usue required and are not available, it wouldyikeve a
material adverse effect on our business, finamdatition and our ability to continue as a goingaarn.

We operate in a highly competitive industry, whiatould render our products obsolete or
substantially limit the volume of products that weell. This would limit our ability to compete and
maintain sustained profitability.

The market in which we compete is intensely contipeti Our competitors include independent
animal health companies and major pharmaceuticapaaies that have animal health divisions. We also
compete with independent, third-party distributansjuding distributors who sell products underittoavn
private labels. In the point-of-care diagnostatitey market, our major competitors include IDEX3Qaxis,
and Synbiotics, a unit of Zoetis. The products ufiactured by our OVP segment for sale by thirdipart
compete with similar products offered by a numidestber companies, some of which have substantially
greater financial, technical, research and othewueees than us and may have more established tingrke
sales, distribution and service organizations thase of our OVP segment's customers. Competitars
have facilities with similar capabilities to our ®\6egment, which they may operate and sell at arlawit
price to customers than our OVP segment does, vduiald cause us to lose customers. Companiesawith
significant presence in the companion animal haalinket, such as Bayer AG, CEVA Santé Animale, Eli
Lilly, Merck, Novartis AG, sanofi-aventis, VétoquhS.A., Virbac S.A. and Zoetis may be marketing or
developing products that compete with our prodactsould compete with them if developed. These and
other competitors and potential competitors mayetsbstantially greater financial, technical, reseand
other resources and larger, more established niagkstles and service organizations than we da. O
competitors may offer broader product lines ancetgreater name recognition than we do. For exariiple
Zoetis devotes its significant commercial and firiahresources to growing Synbiotics' market shawe,
sales could suffer significantly. Our competitoray also develop or market technologies or prodihetisare
more effective or commercially attractive than ourrent or future products or that would render our
technologies and products obsolete. Further, iadditcompetition could come from new entrantshi t
animal health care market. Moreover, we may neeHlhe financial resources, technical expertise or
marketing, sales or support capabilities to compateessfully. We believe that currently one aflatgest
competitors, IDEXX, in effect prohibits all of ithstributors except one from selling certain corjwet
products, including our blood testing instrumemtd heartworm diagnostic tests. Another of our
competitors, Abaxis, recently launched a veterirthagnostic laboratory offering which may serve to
intensify competition and lower our margins.

If we fail to compete successfully, our abilityachieve sustained profitability will be limited and
sustained profitability, or profitability at all, ay not be possible.

The loss of significant customers who, for exampéee historically large purchasers or who are
considered leaders in their field could damage dausiness and financial results.

Revenue from Merck entities, including Merck Aninkbdalth, represented approximately 13% of our
consolidated revenue for each of the twelve moeatitled December 31, 2013, and the twelve monthsglende
December 31, 2011. No other single customer aceddor more than 10% of our consolidated reveue f
the twelve months ended December 31, 2012. Orteroes accounted for 16%, and another customer
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accounted for 12% of our accounts receivable aebéeer 31, 2013. A third customer accounted for
approximately 29% of our consolidated accountsivatée at December 31, 2012. No single customer
accounted for more than 10% of our consolidatedatts receivable at December 31, 2011.

The loss of significant customers who, for examate, historically large purchasers or who are
considered leaders in their field could damagebmsiness and financial results.

We may be unable to market and sell our productscassfully.

We may not develop and maintain marketing and/esszapabilities successfully, and we may not
be able to make arrangements with third partiggetéorm these activities on satisfactory termsouif
marketing and sales strategy is unsuccessful, llityao sell our products will be negatively imgtad and
our revenues will decrease. This could resulhenloss of distribution rights for products or @aé to gain
access to new products and could cause damage tepauation and adversely affect our businessfatiode
prospects.

We believe the recent worldwide economic weaknasdhiad a negative effect on our business, and
this may continue in the future. This is particlyanotable in the sale of new instruments, whieh icapital
expenditure many, if not most, veterinarians mayosie to defer in times of perceived economic wesdkne
Even if the overall economy begins to grow in thieife, there may be a lag before veterinariandalisp
confidence such growth will continue and returiistorical capital expenditure purchasing patteris.the
vast majority of cash flow to veterinarians ultielgtis funded by pet owners without private insweor
government support, our business may be more stilsleejp severe economic downturns than other healt
care businesses which rely less on individual coess.

The market for companion animal healthcare prodsdigghly fragmented. Because our CCA
proprietary products are generally available oalydterinarians or by prescription and our medical
instruments require technical training to operate ultimately sell all our CCA products primarily or
through veterinarians. The acceptance of our ptsday veterinarians is critical to our succesbaries in
our ability to obtain or maintain such acceptanceh@anges in veterinary medical practice couldifigantly
decrease our anticipated sales.

We believe that currently one of our largest cortpest, IDEXX, in effect prohibits all of its
distributors except for MWI Veterinary Supply, IlEMWI") from selling certain competitive products,
including our blood testing instruments and heartwdiagnostic tests. This situation may hinder ahility
to sell and market our products if these distribaire increasingly successful. While we havegraeament
with MWI to sell our heartworm diagnostic testgrd can be no assurance this agreement will poole t
ultimately successful in enhancing our profitapilir market presence.

We may not be able to continue to achieve sustaipetfitability or increase profitability on a
guarterly or annual basis.

Prior to 2005, we incurred net losses on an anpmasik since our inception in 1988 and, as of
December 31, 2013, we had an accumulated defi§it81.1 million. We have achieved only three cerart
with income before income taxes greater than $illlom Accordingly, relatively small differences our
performance metrics may cause us to generate aatmgeor net loss in future periods. Our abitiy
continue to be profitable in future periods willpgad, in part, on our ability to increase salesinCCA
segment, including maintaining and growing ouraiistl base of instruments and related consumatoles,
maintain or increase gross margins and to limiticeease in our operating expenses to a reasoleslgleas
well as avoid or effectively manage any unanti@passues. We may not be able to generate, sustain
increase profitability on a quarterly or annualibadf we cannot achieve or sustain profitabifity an
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extended period, we may not be able to fund oueetga cash needs, including the repayment of dgeibt a
comes due, or continue our operations.

We rely substantially on third-party suppliers. €Hoss of products or delays in product availalyilit
from one or more third-party suppliers could substélly harm our business.

To be successful, we must contract for the supplgrananufacture ourselves, current and future
products of appropriate quantity, quality and cdatich products must be available on a timely kesisbe
in compliance with any regulatory requirementsmigirly, we must provide ourselves, or contracttfor
supply of certain services. Such services mugtrbeided in a timely and appropriate manner. Faito do
any of the above could substantially harm our begsn

We rely on third-party suppliers to manufacturestnproducts we do not manufacture ourselves and
to provide services we do not provide ourselvempfetary products provided by these suppliersesgnt a
majority of our revenue. We currently rely on thasippliers for our blood testing instruments and
consumable supplies for these instruments, foiroaging products and related software and servioes,
key components of our point-of-care diagnosticstestwell as for the manufacture of other products.

The loss of access to products from one or morpl®up could have a significant, negative impact
on our business. Major suppliers who sell us petary products which are responsible for more thznof
our revenue for the twelve months ended Decembe2(BiI3 assuming we had consolidated Heska Imaging
for the entire period (which we define as "Pro farB®13") are Boule, Cuattro, LLC, Esaote, FUJIFIL&d
Quidel. None of these suppliers sold us proprygbaoducts which were responsible for more than 20%
our Pro forma 2013 revenue, although the propsigtemducts of one of these suppliers was respan§ilpl
more than 15% of our Pro forma 2013 revenue andtrer was responsible for more than 10% of our Pro
forma 2013 revenue. We often purchase products énar suppliers under agreements that are of lanite
duration or potentially can be terminated on aruahbasis. In the case of our blood testing imsé&nts and
our digital radiography solutions we are typicadhtitled to non-exclusive access to consumableli@spr
ongoing non-exclusive access to products and ssrvameet the needs of an existing customer base,
respectively, for a defined period upon expiratdmexclusive rights, which could subject us to cetitpre
pressures in the period of non-exclusive accedthodgh we believe we will be able to maintain dypyd
our major product and service offerings in the Heare, there can be no assurance that our supplié
meet their obligations under any agreements welragg in place with them or that we will be able to
compel them to do so. Risks of relying on suppliaclude:

* Inability to meet minimumobligations. Current agreements, or agreements we may negotiate
the future, may commit us to certain minimum pusghar other spending obligations. Itis
possible we will not be able to create the markshand to meet such obligations, which could
create a drain on our financial resources andditui Some such agreements may require
minimum purchases and/or sales to maintain pradlitts and we may be significantly harmed
if we are unable to meet such requirements anddas#uct rights.

» Lossof exclusivity. In the case of our blood testing instrumentgjdfare entitled to non-
exclusive access to consumable supplies for aetbfieriod upon expiration of exclusive rights,
we may face increased competition from a thirdyparth similar non-exclusive access or our
former supplier, which could cause us to lose austs and/or significantly decrease our margins
and could significantly affect our financial resultin addition, current agreements, or agreements
we may negotiate in the future, with suppliers meuire us to meet minimum annual sales
levels to maintain our position as the exclusivariiutor of these products. We may not meet
these minimum sales levels and maintain exclusowgr the distribution and sale of these
products. If we are not the exclusive distribudbthese products, competition may increase
significantly, reducing our revenues and/or ded¢rgasur margins.
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Changesin economics. An underlying change in the economics with a §eppsuch as a large
price increase or new requirement of large mininpurchase amounts, could have a significant,
adverse effect on our business, particularly ifane unable to identify and implement an
alternative source of supply in a timely manner.

The loss of product rights upon expiration or termination of an existing agreement. Unless we

are able to find an alternate supply of a similadpct, we would not be able to continue to offer
our customers the same breadth of products andades and operating results would likely
suffer. In the case of an instrument suppliercold also potentially suffer the loss of sales of
consumable supplies, which would be significantases where we have built a significant
installed base, further harming our sales prosmauisopportunities. Even if we were able to
find an alternate supply for a product to whichles rights, we would likely face increased
competition from the product whose rights we laghg marketed by a third party or the former
supplier and it may take us additional time andegge to gain the necessary approvals and
launch an alternative product.

High switching costs. In our blood testing instrument products we cdalte significant
competition and lose all or some of the consumeblenues from the installed base of those
instruments if we were to switch to a competitinstiument. If we need to change to other
commercial manufacturing contractors for certaimwf regulated products, additional regulatory
licenses or approvals generally must be obtainethfsse contractors prior to our use. This
would require new testing and compliance inspestyanor to sale thus resulting in potential
delays. Any new manufacturer would have to be athatin, or develop, substantially equivalent
processes necessary for the production of our ptedWe likely would have to train our sales
force, distribution network employees and custosugaport organization on the new product and
spend significant funds marketing the new prodocur customer base.

The involuntary or voluntary discontinuation of a product line. Unless we are able to find an
alternate supply of a similar product in this an#ar circumstances with any product, we would
not be able to continue to offer our customersstree breadth of products and our sales would
likely suffer. Even if we are able to identify ahernate supply, it may take us additional time
and expense to gain the necessary approvals amchlam alternative product, especially if the
product is discontinued unexpectedly.

Inconsistent or inadequate quality control. We may not be able to control or adequately noonit
the quality of products we receive from our suppgliePoor quality items could damage our
reputation with our customers.

Limited capacity or ability to scale capacity. If market demand for our products increases
suddenly, our current suppliers might not be ableilfill our commercial needs, which would
require us to seek new manufacturing arrangemetsnay result in substantial delays in
meeting market demand. If we consistently generatiee demand for a product than a given
supplier is capable of handling, it could leadaime backorders and potentially lost sales to
competitive products that are readily availablé&isTcould require us to seek or fund new sources
of supply, which may be difficult to find or maygeire terms that are less advantageous if
available at all.

Regulatory risk. Our manufacturing facility and those of some wff third-party suppliers are
subject to ongoing periodic unannounced inspedijoregulatory authorities, including the FDA,
USDA and other federal, state and foreign agerforesompliance with strictly enforced Good
Manufacturing Practices, regulations and similaeign standards. We do not have control over
our suppliers' compliance with these regulatiord standards. Regulatory violations could
potentially lead to interruptions in supply thatittbcause us to lose sales to readily available
competitive products.
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» Developmental delays. We may experience delays in the scale-up quesititeeded for product
development that could delay regulatory submissémmscommercialization of our products in
development, causing us to miss key opportunities.

» Limited intellectual property rights. We typically do not have intellectual propertghis, or may
have to share intellectual property rights, togheducts supplied by third parties and any
improvements to the manufacturing processes ormamufacturing processes for these products.

Potential problems with suppliers such as thoseudsed above could substantially decrease sales,
lead to higher costs and/or damage our reputatiimour customers due to factors such as poor tyuali
goods or delays in order fulfillment, resultingdar being unable to sell our products effectivaigd a
substantially harming our business.

We depend on key personnel for our future succedsve lose our key personnel or are unable to
attract and retain additional personnel, we may teable to achieve our goals.

Our future success is substantially dependent @effiorts of our senior management and other key
personnel. The loss of the services of membeosiogenior management or other key personnel may
significantly delay or prevent the achievement wf lbusiness objectives. Although we have an enmpémyt
agreement with many of these individuals, all are/il employees, which means that either the ernypgéoor
Heska may terminate employment at any time witlpowar notice. If we lose the services of, or fail
recruit, key personnel, the growth of our busiresdd be substantially impaired. We do not maintay
person life insurance for any of our senior managgror key personnel.

If the third parties to whom we granted substantialarketing rights for certain of our existing
products or future products under development aret successful in marketing those products, then our
sales and financial position may suffer.

Our agreements with our corporate marketing pastgenerally contain no or small minimum
purchase requirements in order for them to mairntair exclusive marketing rights. We are partgaio
agreement with Merck Animal Health, which grantsrdkeAnimal Health exclusive distribution and
marketing rights for our canine heartworm prevenfwoduct, TRI-HEART Plus Chewable Tablets,
ultimately sold to or through veterinarians in theited States and Canada. Novartis Agro K.K., Toky
("Novartis Japan") markets and distributes our SGBXEP CH heartworm test in Japan under an exclusive
arrangement. AgriLabs had the non-exclusive riglsell certain of our bovine vaccines in the Uthitates,
Africa and Mexico and has historically generategltiajority of our sales of those vaccines in those
territories under an agreement which was assignadd assumed by Eli Lilly acting through Elanco in
November 2013. One or more of these marketingipestmay not devote sufficient resources to margeti
our products and our sales and financial positmrdsuffer significantly as a result. Revenuenfriglerck
entities, including Merck Animal Health, represehie8% of our Pro forma 2013 revenue. If Merck Aaim
Health personnel fail to market, sell and suppartleartworm preventive sufficiently, our salesldou
decline significantly. Furthermore, there may béing to prevent these partners from pursuingradive
technologies or products that may compete withppoducts in current or future agreements. For gam
we believe a unit of Merck has obtained FDA apptéeaa canine heartworm preventive product with
additional claims compared with our TRI-HEART P{tisewable Tablets, which we believe is not currently
being marketed actively. Should Merck decide tplkasize sales and marketing efforts of this prodattier
than our TRI-HEART Plus Chewable Tablets or cancelagreement regarding canine heartworm preventive
distribution and marketing, our sales could dec$igmificantly. In the future, third-party markeg
assistance may not be available on reasonable,tératzll. If any of these events occur, we may be able
to maintain our current market share or commemaatiertain of our products and our sales will ehecli
accordingly.
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Our future revenues depend on successful produatelepment, commercialization and/or market
acceptance, any of which can be slower than we ex@e may not occur.

The product development and regulatory approvatgse for many of our potential products is
extensive and may take substantially longer thammtieipate. Research projects may fail. New pctsl
that we may be developing for the veterinary maolkee may not perform consistently within our
expectations. Because we have limited resourcdsvote to product development and commercialinatio
any delay in the development of one product ol@eation of resources to product development efftirat
prove unsuccessful may delay or jeopardize theldpreent of other product candidates. If we fail to
successfully develop new products and bring themddket in a timely manner, our ability to generate
additional revenue will decrease.

Even if we are successful in the development abauyrct or obtain rights to a product from a third-
party supplier, we may experience delays or shtgtfacommercialization and/or market acceptaricin®
product. For example, veterinarians may be sloadtmpt a product or there may be delays in produeirge
volumes of a product. The former is particulaikely where there is no comparable product avadlail
historical use of such a product. The ultimatepdida of a new product by veterinarians, the rdtsugh
adoption and the extent veterinarians choose égiate such a product into their practice arengbartant
factors in the economic success of one of our n@aycts and are factors that we do not controlleoge
extent. If our products do not achieve a signiftdavel of market acceptance, demand for our prtedwill
not develop as expected and our revenues willlwerlthan we anticipate. For example, our VitalFsithod
Gas and Electrolyte Analyzer generated signifigaless revenue than we anticipated following itsizh in
May 2010 as placements of this product with custsrdal not occur as we expected.

If we are unable to maintain various financial andther covenants required by our credit facility
agreement we will be unable to borrow any funds endhe agreement and fund our operations.

Under our credit and security agreement with Wediggo, we are required to comply with various
financial and non-financial covenants in order dorbw under the agreement. The availability ofrbeings
under this agreement may be important to contiodartd our operations. Among the financial covesan
are requirements for minimum capital monthly, minimnet income quarterly and capital expenditures
monthly. Although we believe we will be able toimain compliance with all these covenants and any
covenants we may negotiate in the future, therebeamo assurance thereof. We have not alwaysdigerio
maintain compliance with all covenants under oeditrand security agreement with Wells Fargo. For
example, we failed to comply with the net incomeeartant as of June 30, 2013, for which we obtained a
waiver and subsequently negotiated new covenakitaough Wells Fargo has granted us a waiver of non
compliance in each case, there can be no assunanedll be able to obtain similar waivers or other
modifications if needed in the future on econoreitrts, if at all. Failure to comply with any of the
covenants, representations or warranties, or &tlomodify them to allow future compliance, cotdgult in
our being in default and could cause all outstagpthiorrowings under our credit and security agreernten
become immediately due and payable, or impact bilityato borrow under the agreement. In addition,
Wells Fargo has discretion in setting the advaatesrwhich we may borrow against eligible asséts. may
need to rely on available borrowings under the ittt security agreement to fund our operatiorteeén
future. If we are unable to borrow funds undes tigreement, we will need to raise additional effiibm
other sources to continue our operations, whiclitalapay not be available on acceptable termst atla

We often depend on third parties for products wéeind to introduce in the future. If our current
relationships and collaborations are not successfwke may not be able to introduce the products ntemnd
to introduce in the future.

We are often dependent on third parties and calédle partners to successfully and timely perform
research and development activities to successdelglop new products. For example, we jointlyedeped
point-of-care diagnostic products with Quidel.other cases, we have discussed Heska marketihg in t
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veterinary market an instrument being developed third party for use in the human health care etarkn
the future, one or more of these third partiesotlaborative partners may not complete research and
development activities in a timely fashion, or lat &ven if these third parties are successfuhgir research
and development activities, we may not be ableteto an economic agreement with them. If thieisd t
parties or collaborative partners fail to completeearch and development activities, fail to coteptieem in
a timely fashion, or if we are unable to negotetenomic agreements with such third parties oabolative
partners, our ability to introduce new productd W impacted negatively and our revenues may mecliFor
example, we have experienced significant delayspened to our expectations in our development of
products in collaboration with Rapid Diagnostelg.In

Interpretation of existing legislation, regulationsand rules, including financial accounting
standards, or implementation of future legislatioregulations and rules could cause our costs toregse
or could harm us in other ways.

We prepare our financial statements in conformavitte United States generally accepted
accounting principles, or GAAP. These accountiriggiples are established by and are subject to
interpretation by the SEC, the Financial Accounttgndards Board ("FASB") and others who interpnet
create accounting policies. A change in thosecigdican have a significant effect on our reporgsdlts and
may affect our reporting of transactions compldiefbre a change is made effective. Such changgs ma
adversely affect our reported financial resulte,way we conduct our business or have a negatipadtron
us if we fail to track such changes. For exampkhave found FASB's recent decision to codify the
accounting standards has made it more difficutesearch complex accounting matters, increasingske
we will fail to account consistent with FASB ruliesthe future.

If our regulators and/or auditors adopt or interpnere stringent standards than we anticipate, we
could experience unanticipated changes in our tegdmancial statements, including but not limited
restatements, which could adversely affect ourrass due to litigation and investor confidenceun o
financial statements. In addition, changes inuhgerlying circumstances to which we apply given
accounting standards and principles may affect@sults of operations and have a negative impaason
For example, if we were to experience anotherbessre income taxes in 2014, we expect we would
conclude we were no longer more likely than natttlize deferred tax assets recognized on our dinteted
balance sheets, increase our valuation allowaritiataid with these deferred tax assets to an areqgual to
the deferred tax assets and recognize an incomexpense of equal magnitude in our statement attipes
— resulting in a $28.5 million reduction in defefitax assets recognized on our consolidated bakirests
and a $28.5 million increase in our income tax espebased on the total deferred tax assets reeaboiz
our consolidated balance sheets as of Decemb&038, There can be no assurance that future iedadh
deferred tax assets recognized on our consolidstieehce sheets with corresponding increases imadax
expense will not occur if projected financial résudre not met, or otherwise. Similarly, we revigoodwill
recognized on our consolidated balance sheetasitaanually and if we were to conclude there was a
impairment of goodwill, we would reduce the cormsping goodwill to its estimated fair value and
recognize a corresponding expense in our stateofi@puterations. This impairment and corresponding
expense could be as large as the total amountaafvgth recognized on our consolidated balance sheet
which was $21.6 million at December 31, 2013. €lean be no assurance that future goodwill impaitse
will not occur if projected financial results aretmmet, or otherwise.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 ("Sarbanes-Oxleg¥) ihcreased our required administrative
actions and expenses as a public company sineaatgsment. The general and administrative costs of
complying with Sarbanes-Oxley will depend on hovs iinterpreted over time. Of particular concera the
level of standards for internal control evaluaténd reporting adopted under Section 404 of Sarbambssy.
If our regulators and/or auditors adopt or interjpnere stringent standards than we anticipate, wiéoa our
auditors may be unable to conclude that our interoiatrols over financial reporting are designed an
operating effectively, which could adversely affaatestor confidence in our financial statemerier
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example, we excluded the operations of Heska Ingagin entity in which we acquired a majority inttria
2013, from our assessment of disclosure contralpaocedures and internal control over financipbréng
as of December 31, 2013 and while in the first graof 2014 we integrated the accounting and fir@nc
reporting of Heska Imaging into our existing infrasture including disclosure controls and procedwand
internal control over financial reporting and exphese changes to materially strengthen our discto
controls and procedures and internal control ovenicial reporting related to these operationggetican be
no assurance thereof at this point. Even if weaurchuditors are able to conclude that our infezoatrols
over financial reporting are designed and operagfifectively in such a circumstance, our generdl an
administrative costs are likely to increase. Idifdn, if our stock market value increases to daie level on
June 30, 2014, we will be required to have our petelent registered public accountant conduct ait alud
our internal controls, which would increase ourggahand administrative costs.

Similarly, we are required to comply with the SE@andate to provide interactive data using the
eXtensible Business Reporting Language as an axbibertain SEC filings. Compliance with this rdate
has required a significant time investment, whiak hnd may in the future preclude some of our eyapl®
from spending time on more productive mattersaddition, actions by other entities, such as enddungles
to maintain our listing on the Nasdaqg Capital Mérkeuld also increase our general and adminiggatosts
or have other adverse effects on us, as couldduldigislative, regulatory or rule-making actiomaore
stringent interpretations of existing legislatioegulations and rules.

We may face costly legal disputes, including retht® our intellectual property or technology or
that of our suppliers or collaborators.

We may face legal disputes related to our businEsen if meritless, these disputes may require
significant expenditures on our part and could ieataignificant distraction to members of our mgeent
team or other key employees. We may have to gs feeans to collect payment for goods shippeditd t
parties. A legal dispute leading to an unfavorablieg or settlement could have significant matkaidverse
conseqguences on our business.

We may become subject to patent infringement claintslitigation in the United States or other
countries or interference proceedings conductedarUnited States Patent and Trademark Office, or
USPTO, to determine the priority of inventions. eTdefense and prosecution of intellectual propsutis,
USPTO interference proceedings and related leghhdministrative proceedings are likely to be ggstl
time-consuming and distracting. As is typical ir cndustry, from time to time we and our collakiora and
suppliers have received, and may in the futureiveceotices from third parties claiming infringemend
invitations to take licenses under third-party p&e Any legal action against us or our collabansbr
suppliers may require us or our collaborators gp$ars to obtain one or more licenses in ordanswket or
manufacture affected products or services. Howeweror our collaborators or suppliers may not lbe &
obtain licenses for technology patented by otharsmnmercially reasonable terms, or at all, maybeoable
to develop alternative approaches if unable toinllgenses or current and future licenses maybeot
adequate, any of which could substantially harmbuginess.

We may also need to pursue litigation to enforoepatents issued to us or our collaborative
partners, to protect trade secrets or know-how oviayeus or our collaborative partners, or to deteenthe
enforceability, scope and validity of the proprigtaghts of others. Any litigation or interferemc
proceedings will likely result in substantial experto us and significant diversion of the efforftear
technical and management personnel. Any advetsendi@ation in litigation or interference proceegtn
could subject us to significant liabilities to tthiparties. Further, as a result of litigation threy proceedings,
we may be required to seek licenses from thirdgmvrhich may not be available on commercially
reasonable terms, if at all.
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Our stock price has historically experienced higblatility, and could do so in the future, including
experiencing a material price decline resulting froa large sale in a short period of time. In addi, our
Public Common Stock has certain transfer restriati®which could reduce trading liquidity from what i
otherwise would have been and have other undesg#dcts.

According to the latest available filings with t8&C of which we are aware and excluding our
executive officers, we have one shareholder wharetsnmore than 5% of our shares outstanding. This
shareholder holds approximately 9% of our sharéstanding. Should this shareholder or anothetivels
large shareholder decide to sell a large numbehafes in a short period of time, it could leadrcexcess
supply of our shares available for sale and coardimgly result in a significant decline in our ctqorice.

For example, we had a shareholder who held overdf68ar shares outstanding as of September 30, 2011
sell all of its holdings in our stock on or bef@ecember 7, 2011 — and we believe this contribtded
corresponding decline in our stock price during feriod.

The securities markets have experienced signifigpao¢ and volume fluctuations and the market
prices of securities of many microcap and smalla@appanies have in the past been, and can in theefbe
expected to be, especially volatile. During thelts® months ended December 31, 2013, our closouk st
price has ranged from a low of $5.18 to a high®88. Fluctuations in the trading price or liqtyddf our
Public Common Stock may adversely affect our gbibtraise capital through future equity financings
Factors that may have a significant impact on theket price and marketability of our Public Common
Stock include:

» stock sales by large stockholders or by insiders;

» changes in the outlook for our business;

» our quarterly operating results, including as coragdo expected revenue or earnings and in
comparison to historical results;

* termination, cancellation or expiration of our tharty supplier relationships;

* announcements of technological innovations or neslycts by our competitors or by us;

» litigation;

» regulatory developments, including delays in pradoiroductions;

» developments or disputes concerning patents origtapy rights;

» availability of our revolving line of credit and pliance with debt covenants;

» releases of reports by securities analysts;

» economic and other external factors; and

* general market conditions.

In the past, following periods of volatility in thearket price of a company's securities, securities
class action litigation has often been institutdch securities class action suit is filed agaimstit is likely
we would incur substantial legal fees and our mamamnt's attention and resources would be divertad f
operating our business in order to respond toitigation.

On May 4, 2010, our shareholders approved an amemidfthe "Amendment") to our Restated
Certificate of Incorporation. The Amendment plamestrictions on the transfer of our stock thatldou
adversely affect our ability to use our domestiddfal Net Operating Loss carryforward ("NOL"). In
particular, the Amendment prevents the transfehafes without the approval of our Board of Direxif as
a consequence, an individual, entity or groupsidividuals or entities would become a 5-percentéol
under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Cod®86,las amended, and the related Treasury reguatio
and also prevents any existing 5-percent holden frereasing his or her ownership position in tleenpany
without the approval of our Board of Directors. i§may cause certain individuals or entities whe imave
otherwise been willing and able to bid on our stackot do so, reducing the class of potential aegaand
trading liquidity from what it otherwise might habbeen. The Amendment could also have an adversacim
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on the value of our stock if certain buyers who ldaxtherwise have purchased our stock, includingebsi
who may not be comfortable owning stock with transéstrictions, do not purchase our stock asudtres
the Amendment. In addition, because some corptakémvers occur through the acquirer's purchaséei
public market or otherwise, of sufficient sharegjitee it control of a company, any provision thegtricts the
transfer of shares can have the effect of prevgmtitakeover. The Amendment could discourage or
otherwise prevent accumulations of substantialksad shares in which our stockholders might reeaiv
substantial premium above market value and migid te insulate management and the Board of Director
against the possibility of removal to a greaterrdeghan had the Amendment not passed.

Obtaining and maintaining regulatory approvals inrder to market our products may be costly and
delay the marketing and sales of our products. la¢ to meet all regulatory requirements could caus
significant losses from affected inventory and thess of market share.

Many of the products we develop, market or manufactnay subject us to extensive regulation by
one or more of the USDA, the FDA, the EPA and fgmednd other regulatory authorities. These reguiat
govern, among other things, the development, gstiranufacturing, labeling, storage, pre-marketaygd,
advertising, promotion and sale of some of our pat&l Satisfaction of these requirements cangekeral
years and time needed to satisfy them may varytauotislly, based on the type, complexity and ngveft
the product. The decision by a regulatory autfigatregulate a currently non-regulated produgtroduct
area could significantly impact our revenue andehaeorresponding adverse impact on our financial
performance and position while we attempt to comyty the new regulation, if such compliance isgbke
at all.

The effect of government regulation may be to delatp prevent marketing of our products for a
considerable period of time and to impose costhcpdures upon our activities. We have experieircéte
past, and may experience in the future, difficsltizat could delay or prevent us from obtaining the
regulatory approval or license necessary to inttedar market our products. Such delays in appnons/
cause us to forego a significant portion of a nesdpct's sales in its first year due to seasonahty
advanced booking periods associated with certaidymts. Regulatory approval of our products may al
impose limitations on the indicated or intendedsuse which our products may be marketed. Diffi@d in
making established products to all regulatory dpations may lead to significant losses relatedffected
inventory as well as market share. For instanc20iL0 we discovered we had produced a signifieael of
cattle vaccine product in our OVP segment whichf@oned to regulatory specifications for safety,quaty
and efficacy but not purity. We did not ship aejated cattle vaccine product in the three montioeée
June 30, 2010 as we investigated and worked tdveesioe situation. There can be no assuranceotirat
efforts at remediation to ensure this or similastpems will not recur in the future will be sucdes®r that
the USDA will not suspend our ability to producesgh, similar or other products for an extended aine
some point in the future.

Among the conditions for certain regulatory apptsevathe requirement that our facilities and/a th
facilities of our third-party manufacturers confotoncurrent Good Manufacturing Practices and other
requirements. If any regulatory authority determesithat our manufacturing facilities or those af third-
party manufacturers do not conform to appropriaa@ufacturing requirements, we or the manufactwers
our products may be subject to sanctions, including not limited to, warning letters, manufactgrin
suspensions, product recalls or seizures, injunsticefusal to permit products to be imported orto
exported out of the United States, refusals of leguoy authorities to grant approval or to allowmtanter
into government supply contracts, withdrawals @viwusly approved marketing applications, civiefinand
criminal prosecutions. In addition, certain of agreements may require us to pay penalties ifre@aable
to supply products, including for failure to maintaegulatory approvals. Any of these events, @lonin
unison, could damage our business.
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Many of our expenses are fixed and if factors begoour control cause our revenue to fluctuate,
this fluctuation could cause greater than expectedses, cash flow and liquidity shortfalls.

We believe that our future operating results viiltfuate on a quarterly basis due to a variety of
factors which are generally beyond our controlludng:

» supply of products from third-party suppliers omiation, cancelation or expiration of such
relationships;

e competition and pricing pressures from competitix@ducts;

» the introduction of new products or services by @ampetitors or by us;

» large customers failing to purchase at historieatls;

« fundamental shifts in market demand;

* manufacturing delays;

* shipment problems;

» information technology problems, which may prewesfrom conducting our business
effectively, or at all, and may also raise our spst

» regulatory and other delays in product development;

e product recalls or other issues which may raisecosts;

» changes in our reputation and/or market acceptahoer current or new products; and

» changes in the mix of products sold.

We have high operating expenses, including thdagegkto personnel. Many of these expenses are
fixed in the short term and may increase over these of the coming year. If any of the factosgeldl above
cause our revenues to decline, our operating sesoitld be substantially harmed.

Our Public Common Stock is listed on the Nasdaq @apMarket and we may not be able to
maintain that listing, which may make it more diffult for you to sell your shares. In addition, weave
less than 300 record holders, which would allowtesterminate voluntarily the registration of our ecomon
stock with the SEC and after which we would no l@rge eligible to maintain the listing of our Puladli
Common Stock on the Nasdag Capital Market.

Our Public Common Stock is listed on the Nasdaqgt@iddarket. The Nasdaq has several
quantitative and qualitative requirements compamiast comply with to maintain this listing, includj a
$1.00 minimum bid price. We completed a 1-for-&0erse stock split effective December 30, 2010rdkei0
to resolve an ongoing minimum bid price deficiendyhile we believe we are currently in compliandéhw
all Nasdag requirements, there can be no assuvameell continue to meet Nasdagq listing requirensent
including the minimum bid price, that Nasdaq wiltarpret these requirements in the same manneowe d
we believe we meet the requirements, or that Naadhgot change such requirements or add new
requirements to include requirements we do not metbie future. If we are delisted from the Nas@agpital
Market, our Public Common Stock may be considerpdrany stock under the regulations of the SEC and
would therefore be subject to rules that imposatimel sales practice requirements on broker-deaido
sell our securities. The additional burdens impagaon broker-dealers may discourage broker-deftars
effecting transactions in our Public Common Stadhkich could severely limit market liquidity of thublic
Common Stock and any stockholder's ability to @etlsecurities in the secondary market. This te#ck
liquidity would also likely make it more difficufor us to raise capital in the future.

We have less than 300 record holders as of owtlatfrmation, a fact which would make us
eligible to terminate voluntarily the registratiohour common stock with the SEC and therefore sndmur
reporting obligations with the SEC under the Exg®Act and become a non-reporting company. If we
were to cease reporting with the SEC, we wouldomgér be eligible to maintain the listing of ountoon

-25-



stock on the Nasdaq Stock Market, which we woulskekto materially adversely affect the liquidityda
market price for our common stock.

We may face product returns and product liabilif§igation in excess of, or not covered by, our
insurance coverage or indemnities and/or warrantiigem our suppliers. If we become subject to pratiu
liability claims resulting from defects in our pragtts, we may fail to achieve market acceptance wf o
products and our sales could substantially decline.

The testing, manufacturing and marketing of ourentrproducts as well as those currently under
development entail an inherent risk of productilighclaims and associated adverse publicity. [¢wing
the introduction of a product, adverse side effatdy be discovered. Adverse publicity regardinghsu
effects could affect sales of our other productsafoindeterminate time period. To date, we hate n
experienced any material product liability clairbat any claim arising in the future could substhtiharm
our business. Potential product liability claimaynexceed the amount of our insurance coverageayibm
excluded from coverage under the terms of the poli/e may not be able to continue to obtain adequa
insurance at a reasonable cost, if at all. Irethant that we are held liable for a claim againsictvwe are
not indemnified or for damages exceeding the $1Momilimit of our insurance coverage or which risun
significant adverse publicity against us, we maeloevenue, be required to make substantial pagment
which could exceed our financial capacity and/gelor fail to achieve market acceptance.

We may be held liable for the release of hazardouwsterials, which could result in extensive
remediation costs or otherwise harm our business.

Certain of our products and development prograradymred at our Des Moines, lowa facility involve
the controlled use of hazardous and bio hazardaterrals, including chemicals and infectious diseas
agents. Although we believe that our safety pracesifor handling and disposing of such materiataply
with the standards prescribed by applicable Ia&tate and federal regulations, we cannot elimitteeisk of
accidental contamination or injury from these mater In the event of such an accident, we coeldhéld
liable for any fines, penalties, remediation caststher damages that result. Our liability foz telease of
hazardous materials could exceed our resourceshwbiuld lead to a shutdown of our operations,iagmt
remediation costs and potential legal liability. addition, we may incur substantial costs to cgmpth
environmental regulations if we choose to expandheanufacturing capacity.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable.

Iltem 2. Properties.

Our principal administrative and research and dgraknt activities are located in Loveland,
Colorado. We currently lease approximately 60 8f@are feet at a facility in Loveland, Colorado eman
agreement which expires in 2023. Our principabpagion facility located in Des Moines, lowa, catsiof
168,000 square feet of buildings on 34 acres af,lamich we own. We also own a 175-acre farm used
principally for testing products, located in Cddidowa. Our European facility in Fribourg, Svétland has
approximately 6,000 square feet leased under aeagmt which expires in 2017.

Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings.
From time to time, we may be involved in litigaticelated to claims arising out of our operatioAs.

December 31, 2013, we were not a party to any Ipgateedings that are expected, individually othie
aggregate, to have a material adverse effect obuginess, financial condition or operating results
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Iltem 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

PART Il

Iltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities.

Our Public Common Stock is quoted on the Nasdadt&laparket under the symbol "HSKA." The
following table sets forth the high and low salesgs for our Public Common Stock as reported gy th
Nasdaq Capital Market for the periods indicatedwel

High Low

2012

First Quarter $ 12.25 $ 6.83
Second Quarter 13.00 10.95
Third Quarter 11.40 7.55
Fourth Quarter 9.70 7.48
2013

First Quarter 9.30 8.02
Second Quarter 9.17 6.67
Third Quarter 6.97 5.18
Fourth Quarter 8.72 5.70
2014

First Quarter (through March 28) 11.21 8.63

As of March 28, 2014, there were approximately &ifbrd holders of our Public Common Stock,
including approximately 87 participant account£efle & Co.'s position held with our registrar, and
approximately 3,200 beneficial stockholders. Whikepaid $1.6 million in dividends in 2012, we dat n
anticipate any dividend payments in the foreseckiblze.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following consolidated statement of operatiand consolidated balance sheets data have been
derived from our consolidated financial statemefitse information set forth below is not necesgaril
indicative of the results of future operations ahduld be read in conjunction with "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations" and the Consolidated Fir@nci
Statements and related Notes included as Itemsd B anthis Form 10-K. We completed a 1-for-10emese
stock split effective December 30, 2010. Excepatasrwise indicated, all related amounts repopeldw
have been retroactively adjusted for the effe¢hisf reverse stock split.
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Year Ended December 31,

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Revenue:
Core companion animal health
Other vaccines, pharmaceuticals and
products

Total revenue, net

Cost of revenue

Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Selling and marketing
Research and development
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)
Interest and other (income) expense, net

Income (loss) before income taxes
Income tax expense:

Current income tax expense

Deferred income tax expense (benefit)

Total income tax expense (benefit)

Net income (loss)

Net income (loss) attributable to non-
controlling interest

Net income (loss) attributable to Heska
Corporation

Basic net income (loss) per share attributable to

Heska Corporation

Diluted net income (loss) per share attributable
to Heska Corporation

Dividends declared per share

Consolidated Balance Sheets Data:

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Note receivable — related party

Total assets

Line of credit

Other short-term borrowings, including current
portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, excluding current portion

Non-controlling interest

Public Common Stock subject to redemption

Total stockholders' equity
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2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

$6,449 $ 55655 $ 57481 $ 61502 $ 66,404
9,229 9,796 12,584 11,303 11,935
75,678 65,451 70,065 72,805 78,339
47,219 40,659 40,878 41,704 47,707
28,459 24,792 29,187 31,101 30,632
14,524 14,726 15,167 18,339 19,428
1,718 1,597 1,650 958 1,500
8,173 8,111 9,121 9,646 11,134
24,415 24,434 25,938 28,943 32,062
4,044 358 3,249 2,158 (1,430)
306 289 (117) 135 (37)
3,738 69 3,366 2,023 (1,393)
205 61 165 214 183
1,291 (10) 1,056 606 (637)
1,496 51 1,221 820 (454)
$ 2,242 $ 18 $ 2145 % 1,203 $ (939)
— — — — 257
2,242 18 2,145 1,203 (1,196)
$ 043 $ 0.00 $ 0.41 $ 0.23 $ (0.21)
$ 043 $ 0.00 $ 0.40 $ 0.22 $ (0.21)
$ — $ — $ — $ 0.30 $ —
$5,400 $ 5,492 $ 6,332 % 5784  $ 6,016
28,493 27,279 28,891 32,955 33,911
— — — — 1,407
64,134 63,048 61,894 66,826 93,553
4,201 3,079 — 2,552 4,798
381 — — — 132
14,107 12,660 9,289 14,389 17,706
— — — — 369
— — — — 13,659
— — — — 3,405
45,055 45,798 48,439 48,862 47,116



Iltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of iancial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations should be
read in conjunction with "Selected ConsolidatedafRtial Data" and the Consolidated Financial Statésne
and related Notes included in Iltems 6 and 8 offlisn 10-K. This discussion contains forward-laoaki
statements that involve risks and uncertaintiagchStatements, which include statements concefatnge
revenue sources and concentration, gross profgjimgrselling and marketing expenses, research and
development expenses, general and administratiyenses, capital resources, additional financings or
borrowings and additional losses, are subjectsisrand uncertainties, including, but not limitedthose
discussed below and elsewhere in this Form 10-Kigodarly in Item 1A "Risk Factors," that coulduse
actual results to differ materially from those paipd. The forward-looking statements set forttiis Form
10-K are as of the close of business on March @84 2and we undertake no duty and do not intenghtiate
this information.

Overview

We develop, manufacture, market, sell and suppagrinary products. Our business is comprised of
two reportable segments, Core Companion AnimaltHd&CCA"), which represented 85% of Pro forma
2013 revenue and Other Vaccines, PharmaceuticdlRaoducts ("OVP"), which represented 15% of Pro
forma 2013 revenue.

The Core Companion Animal Health segment ("CCAt)udes, primarily for canine and feline use,
blood testing instruments and supplies, digitalgmg products, software and services, and singie us
products and services such as heartworm diagrtest€, heartworm preventive products, allergy
immunotherapy products and allergy testing.

Blood testing and other non-imaging instruments suplies represented approximately 34% of our
Pro forma 2013 revenue. Many products in this arealve placing an instrument in the field and gexting
future revenue from consumables, including itenthss supplies and service, as that instrumersteid.u
Approximately 28% of our Pro forma 2013 revenueiltesl from the sale of such consumables to anliedta
base of instruments and approximately 6% of ourfétma 2013 revenue was from new hardware sales. A
loss of or disruption in supply of consumables weselling to an installed base of instruments aoul
substantially harm our business. All of our bldesting and other non-imaging instruments and seppire
supplied by third parties, who typically own th@guct rights and supply the product to us undeiketarg
and/or distribution agreements. In many cased)ave collaborated with a third party to adapt a &amm
instrument for veterinary use. Major productstiis tarea include our chemistry instruments, ourdielogy
instruments and our blood gas instruments and #filiated operating consumables. Revenue from
products in these three areas, including revermoes éonsumables, represented approximately 30%irof o
Pro forma 2013 revenue.

Imaging hardware, software and services represempximately 17% of Pro forma 2013 revenue.
Digital radiography is the largest product offeringhis area, which also includes ultrasound uregnts.
Digital radiography solutions typically consistatombination of hardware and software placed with
customer, often combined with an ongoing serviagkampport contract. It has been our experiendentioat
of the economic benefit is generated at the timsat# in this area, in contrast to the blood tgstategory
discussed above where ongoing consumable revemfiefsa larger component of economic value.

Other CCA revenue, including single use diagnaatid other tests, pharmaceuticals and biologicals
as well as research and development, licensingayadty revenue, represented approximately 33%uof o
Pro forma 2013 revenue. Since items in this are@ften single use by their nature, our typical & to
build customer satisfaction and loyalty for eachdurct, generate repeat annual sales from existispmers
and expand our customer base in the future. Pteduthis area are both supplied by third pardied
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provided by us. Major products in this area inelwair heartworm diagnostic tests, our heartworm
preventives, our allergy test kits, our allergy immotherapy and our allergy tests. Combined revénmone
heartworm-related products and allergy-related petsirepresented 30% of our Pro forma 2013 revenue.

We consider the CCA segment to be our core busaredsievote most of our management time and
other resources to improving the prospects fordagment. Maintaining a continuing, reliable andr®mmic
supply of products we currently obtain from thirtges is critical to our success in this areartudily all of
our sales and marketing expenses occur in the @@fent. The majority of our research and developme
spending is dedicated to this segment as well.

All our CCA products are ultimately sold primartly or through veterinarians. In many cases,
veterinarians will mark up their costs to the esdru The acceptance of our products by veterinsiig
critical to our success. CCA products are soldaty to end users by us as well as through digioh
relationships, such as our corporate agreementMatttk Animal Health, the sale of kits to condultidal
testing to third-party veterinary diagnostic laliorges and independent third-party distributorevéue
from direct sales and distribution relationshipgsresented approximately 68% and 32%, respectieély,
CCA Pro forma 2013 revenue.

We intend to sustain profitability over the longntethrough a combination of revenue growth, gross
margin improvement and expense control. Accorgingk closely monitor revenue growth trends in our
CCA segment. Pro forma 2013 revenue in this segdeareased 6% as compared to Pro forma revenue for
the twelve months ended December 31, 2012 assusmdgrtgad consolidated Heska Imaging for the entire
period. We believe poor economic conditions olierpiast several years have impacted our reventier as,
example, veterinarians have continued to delayeterccapital expenditures on new diagnostic
instrumentation.

The OVP segment includes our 168,000 square fo@tAJ&nd FDA-licensed production facility in
Des Moines, lowa. We view this facility as an asgeich could allow us to control our cost of go@isany
pharmaceuticals and vaccines that we may commizesial the future. We have increased integratioinis
facility with our operations elsewhere. For exagpiirtually all our U.S. inventory, excluding Hesk
Imaging, is now stored at this facility and fulfiient logistics are managed there. CCA segmenuptsd
manufactured at this facility are transferred &t@md are not recorded as revenue for our OVP esgtignwe
view OVP reported revenue as revenue primarilyotgec the overhead costs of the facility and to gatee
incremental cash flow to fund our CCA segment.

Our OVP segment includes private label vaccine@ramaceutical production, primarily for cattle
but also for other animals such as small mammalisOVP products are sold by third parties undérdh
party labels.

We developed a line of bovine vaccines that aenbed by the USDA. We have an agreement
which was assigned by a previous distributor, Aghit to, and assumed by, Eli Lilly acting througari€b in
November 2013, for the marketing and sale of cedéthese vaccines which AgriLabs sold primarihdar
the Titaniun] and MasterGuard brands. This agreement has historically genematggnificant portion of
our OVP segment's revenue. Our OVP segment atglupes vaccines and pharmaceuticals for other third
parties.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Our discussion and analysis of our financial coadiaind results of operations is based upon the
consolidated financial statements, which have Ipeepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted

accounting principles ("GAAP"). The preparatiorfiobncial statements in conformity with GAAP reps
management to make estimates and assumptiondfegttthe reported amounts of assets and liakslitiee
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disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiesfate date of the financial statements, and thented
amounts of revenue and expense during the peribalsse estimates are based on historical experante
various other assumptions that we believe to bsoresble under the circumstances. We have idemhttiiese
critical accounting policies used in reporting financial position and results of operations bageoch a
consideration of those accounting policies thabime the most complex or subjective decisions or
assessment. We consider the following to be aticarpolicies.

Revenue Recognition

We generate our revenue through the sale of pregastwell as through licensing of technology
product rights, royalties and sponsored researdidamelopment. Our policy is to recognize
revenue when the applicable revenue recognitidar@ihave been met, which generally include
the following:

» Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
» Delivery has occurred or services rendered,;

» Price is fixed or determinable; and

» Collectability is reasonably assured.

Revenue from the sale of products is recognizest &fith the goods are shipped to the customer
and acceptance has been received, if required anitppropriate provision for estimated returns
and allowances. We do not permit general retufipsamlucts sold. Certain of our products have
expiration dates. Our policy is to exchange certaitdated, expired product with the same
product. We record an accrual for the estimatedti abreplacing the expired product expected to
be returned in the future, based on our histoggpkrience, adjusted for any known factors that
reasonably could be expected to change historatgims, such as regulatory actions which
allow us to extend the shelf lives of our produd&evenue from both direct sales to veterinarians
and sales to independent third-party distributoesgenerally recognized when goods are
shipped. Our products are shipped complete amty teause by the customer. The terms of the
customer arrangements generally pass title andfiskvnership to the customer at the time of
shipment. Certain customer arrangements providadoeptance provisions. Revenue for these
arrangements is not recognized until the accepthasdeen received or the acceptance period
has lapsed. We reduce our revenue by the estimagt@f any rebates, allowances or similar
programs, which are used as promotional programs.

Recording revenue from the sale of products inothe use of estimates and management
judgment. We must make a determination at the tfrsale whether the customer has the ability
to make payments in accordance with arrangemaétitsle we do utilize past payment history in
making our assessment, the determination of whethikactability is reasonably assured is
ultimately a judgment decision that must be madenBpagement. We must also make estimates
regarding our future obligation relating to retymebates, allowances and similar other
programs.

License revenue under arrangements to sell ordeeproduct rights or technology rights is
recognized as obligations under the agreementatisdied, which generally occurs over a period
of time. Generally, licensing revenue is defemed recognized over the estimated life of the
related agreements, products, patents or technoldgyrefundable licensing fees, marketing
rights and milestone payments received under ccimharrangements are deferred and
recognized over the remaining contractual termgu#ie straight-line method.

Recording revenue from license arrangements ingdlve use of estimates. The primary
estimate made by management is determining theldgefof the related agreement, product,
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patent or technology. We evaluate all of our Igirg arrangements by estimating the useful life
of either the product or the technology, the lergjtthe agreement or the legal patent life and
defer the revenue for recognition over the appetpnperiod.

Occasionally we enter into arrangements that irchdltiple elements. Such arrangements may
include the licensing of technology and manufaomiof product. In these situations we must
determine whether the various elements meet tterierto be accounted for as separate
elements. If the elements cannot be separateehue\is recognized once revenue recognition
criteria for the entire arrangement have been mever the period that the Company's
obligations to the customer are fulfilled, as appiate. If the elements are determined to be
separable, the revenue is allocated to the sepalmtents based on relative fair value and
recognized separately for each element when thiicapfe revenue recognition criteria have
been met. In accounting for these multiple elenagr@ingements, we must make determinations
about whether elements can be accounted for sepaaaid make estimates regarding their
relative fair values.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accountsiketse based on client-specific allowances,
as well as a general allowance. Specific allowsm@ce maintained for clients which are
determined to have a high degree of collectalilitly based on such factors, among others, as: (i)
the aging of the accounts receivable balanceth@)client's past payment history; (iii) a
deterioration in the client's financial conditi@vjdenced by weak financial condition and/or
continued poor operating results, reduced cretlitgs, and/or a bankruptcy filing. In addition to
the specific allowance, the Company maintains &ggrallowance for credit risk in its accounts
receivable which is not covered by a specific allase. The general allowance is established
based on such factors, among others, as: (i) takldalance of the outstanding accounts
receivable, including considerations of the agiagpgories of those accounts receivable; (ii) past
history of uncollectable accounts receivable woifis; and (iii) the overall creditworthiness of

the client base. A considerable amount of judgneergquired in assessing the realizability of
accounts receivable. Should any of the factorsidened in determining the adequacy of the
overall allowance change, an adjustment to theigiavfor doubtful accounts receivable may be
necessary.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or etadost being determined on the first-in, first-
out method. Inventories are written down if théreated net realizable value of an inventory
item is less than its recorded value. We reviesvctrrying cost of our inventories by product
each quarter to determine the adequacy of ourveséor excess/obsolescence inventory. In
accounting for inventories we must make estimatganding the estimated net realizable value of
our inventory. This estimate is based, in partponforecasts of future sales and shelf life of
product.

Deferred Tax Assets — Valuation Allowance

Our deferred tax assets, such as a domestic NeateLoss ("NOL"), are reduced by an
offsetting valuation allowance based on judgmeasabssment of available evidence if we are
unable to conclude that it is more likely than tiatt some or all of the related deferred tax assets
will be realized. If we are able to conclude itnsre likely than not that we will realize a future
benefit from a deferred tax asset based upon ¢innass of future taxable income, we will

reduce the related valuation allowance by an amegual to the estimated quantity of income
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taxes we would pay in cash if we were not to wilize deferred tax asset in the future. The first
time this occurs in a given jurisdiction, it wiksult in a net deferred tax asset on our conselitlat
balance sheets and an income tax benefit of eqaghitude in our statement of operations in the
period we make the determination. In future pesjode will then recognize as income tax
expense the estimated quantity of income taxes owddahave paid in cash had we not utilized
the related deferred tax asset. The corresponolirgal entry will be a reduction of our deferred
tax asset. If there is a change regarding oupdaition in the future, we will make a
corresponding adjustment to the related valuatiloavance. For example, if we were to
conclude our estimates of future taxable incomeeweit sufficient and thus we were no longer
more likely than not to utilize deferred tax assetognized on our consolidated balance sheets,
we would increase the valuation allowance affiliatégth these deferred tax assets and recognize
an income tax expense of an equal magnitude istatement of operations. At December 31,
2013, we had generated cumulative three year indmmfege income taxes as well as eight
consecutive years of federal taxable income andladad we were more likely than not to

utilize deferred tax assets recognized on our dmfaed balance sheets as of such date. If we
were to experience another loss before income tax2314, we expect we would conclude we
were not more likely than not to utilize deferrea tissets recognized on our consolidated
balance sheets, increase our valuation allowariiti@taid with these deferred tax assets to an
amount equal to the deferred tax assets and remgniincome tax expense of equal magnitude
in our statement of operations.
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Results of Operations

The following table summarizes our results of opiers for the three most recent fiscal years:

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2012 2013

(in thousands except per share amounts)
Consolidated Statement of Income Data:

Revenue:
Core companion animal health $ 57,481 $ 61,502 $ 66,404
Other vaccines, pharmaceuticals and products 12,584 11,303 11,935
Total revenue, net 70,065 72,805 78,339
Cost of revenue 40,878 41,704 47,707
Gross profit 29,187 31,101 30,632
Operating expenses:
Selling and marketing 15,167 18,339 19,428
Research and development 1,650 958 1,500
General and administrative 9,121 9,646 11,134
Total operating expenses 25,938 28,943 32,062
Operating income (loss) 3,249 2,158 (1,430)
Interest and other (income) expense, net (117) 135 (37)
Income (loss) before income taxes 3,366 2,023 (1,393)
Income tax expense (benefit):
Current tax expense 165 214 183
Deferred tax expense (benefit) 1,056 606 (637)
Total income tax expense (benefit) 1,221 820 (454)
Net income (loss) $ 2,145 $ 1,203 $ (939)
Net income (loss) attributable to non-controllinterest $ — $ — $ 257
Net income (loss) attributable to Heska Corporatio $ 2,145  $ 1,203  $ (1,196)
Basic net income (loss) per share attributablegskid
Corporation $ 0.41 $ 0.23 $ (0.21)
Diluted net income (loss) per share attributableléska
Corporation $ 040 % 0.22 $ (0.21)
Weighted average outstanding shares used to corbpsie net
income (loss) per share attributable to Heska Caitjmm 5,237 5,326 5,755
Weighted average outstanding shares used to corduited
net income (loss) per share attributable to Heskg@ation 5,338 5,489 5,755
Revenue

Total revenue increased 8% to $78.3 million in 26@Bpared to $72.8 million in 2012. Total
revenue increased 4% to $72.8 million in 2012 cawhéo $70.1 million in 2011.

CCA segment revenue increased 8% to $66.4 millid20il3 compared to $61.5 million in 2012.
The largest factor in the increase was $12.7 miliiorevenue from Heska Imaging, which represdres t
revenue from sales after our acquisition of Heskading on February 24, 2013. We also generatetagre
revenue from sales of our heartworm preventive &wdd Animal Health. These were somewhat offset by
lower revenue from domestic sales of our heartwaiagnostic tests, our chemistry instruments, our
hematology instruments, our instrument consumadolesour international allergy business. CCA sedmen
revenue increased 7% to $61.5 million in 2012 caegbéo $57.5 million in 2011. Greater revenue from
instrument consumables was a factor in the increase
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OVP segment revenue increased 6% to $11.9 millid0iL3 compared to $11.3 million in 2012.
Increased revenue from sponsored research andogevenht activities was the largest factor in theease.
OVP segment revenue decreased 10% to $11.3 mitlig012 compared to $12.6 million in 2011. Lower
sales of cattle vaccines under our contract withl&dps and lower international sales of cattle vaes were
factors in the decline.

Cost of Revenue

2013 Cost of revenue was $47.7 million, an incredsel% compared to $41.7 million in 2012.
Gross profit decreased 2% to $30.6 million in 2098 $31.1 million in 2012. 2013 gross profit inded
$5.1 million in gross profit from Heska Imaging.rdss Margin, i.e. gross profit divided by total eeue,
decreased to 39.1% in 2013 from 42.7% in 2012Julme 2013, we recognized a reserve (the "Roche
Reserve") related to an agreement (the "Roche Aggat) with Roche related to our blood gas anakyzer
under which we would be relieved of any minimumghase obligations other than the Roche Agreemeht an
Roche would be obligated to supply us with consuesalnd spare parts for a shortened period of tifitne
Roche Reserve was $1.1 million, as follows: $6@u#and recognized in cost of revenue related toinedy
purchase of new instruments under the Roche Agnee®&68 thousand recognized in cost of revenue
related to instruments already in inventory andeberated depreciation on service units, $13 thalisan
recognized in sales and marketing expenses reifatctelerated depreciation on demonstration U3,
thousand recognized in research and developmernegp related to the purchase of research and
development equipment required under the Rocheehgeat we would not have otherwise purchased and
$243 thousand recognized in general and adminigrakpenses related to other anticipated cosasectto
the Roche Agreement. In addition, in June 2013agegnized a $453 thousand reserve (the "SpotChem
Reserve") related to consumable and accessorytmmyewhich we did not expect to sell. A shift iropuct
mix to relatively lower margin product areas aslhaslthe impact of the Roche Reserve and the SpatCh
Reserve, were factors in the decline in Gross Midiwi the twelve months ended December 31, 2013 as
compared to the prior year period.

2012 Cost of revenue was $41.7 million, an increds96 compared to $40.9 million in 2011. Gross
profit increased 7% to $31.1 million in 2012 fro@9$2 million in 2011. Gross Margin, i.e. grossfjiro
divided by total revenue, increased to 42.7% in22Bdm 41.7% in 2011. A key factor in the increasses
product mix, where the overall sales shift was t@aNdgher margin products including instrument
consumables.

Operating Expenses

Selling and marketing expenses increased by 6%3a$nillion in 2013 compared to $18.3 million
in 2012. Heska Imaging sales and marketing expeh$8.3 million recognized in 2013 but not 2012sv
the largest factor in the change. This was someuwffeet by lower spending on travel and compensdibr
members of our sales force and lower marketing esgxerelated to advertising and other third patyises.
Selling and marketing expenses increased by 218488 million in 2012 compared to $15.2 million in
2011. Greater recruiting and relocation costdedl#o the expansion of our sales force and inexkas
spending related to product marketing programs \iar®rs in the increase.

Research and development expenses were $1.5 mill@®l3, including $175 thousand in expense
from Heska Imaging, an increase of $542 thousarmbampared to $958 thousand in 2012. Other faators
the change include a reserve for equipment thabkad previously used in a project that was regent!
discontinued and expenses related to the Roche\ResResearch and development expenses decreased b
$692 thousand to $958 thousand in 2012 from $1liomin 2011. The largest factor in the changeswa
lower payments to third parties related to prodwttaborations in 2012 as compared to 2011.
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General and administrative expenses were $11.foméind included approximately $1.0 million in
expense from Heska Imaging in 2013, an incread®%f as compared to $9.6 million in 2012. In additio
expenses from and related to the acquisition ok&alémaging, severance expenses related to thertatiom
of certain employees and expenses related to thbeRReserve were key factors in the increase. e@en
and administrative expenses were $9.6 million ih2@& 6% increase as compared to $9.1 million 1207
favorable arbitration ruling in 2011 where the otbiele paid our legal costs along with increasedlle
spending in 2012 were factors in the increase.

Interest and Other Expense, Net

Interest and other expense, net, was income oft&8&and in 2013, as compared to an expense of
$135 thousand in 2012 and income of $117 thousa@@11. This line item can be broken into two
components: net interest expense or income anidmeégn currency gains and losses. Net interest wa
income of $53 thousand in 2013, as compared txpense of $22 thousand in 2012 and income of
$1l44thousand in 2011. We recognized interest incora¢erd to Heska Imaging in 2013, primarily related t
income on an interest-bearing note from Cuattreekieary, LLC, which did not occur in 2012 or 201\/e
recognized interest income related to arbitratimgments in 2012 and 2011, although the interesinie
recognized in 2012 was not at the same level 2611 and no such income was recognized in 2013. Ne
foreign currency losses were $16 thousand in 28183 thousand in 2012 and $27 thousand in 2011.

Income Tax Expense (Benefit)

In 2013, we had total income tax benefit of $45@gand, including $637 thousand in domestic
deferred income tax benefit, a non-cash item, d@@8$housand in current income tax expense. 12 20#
had total income tax expense of $820 thousandydimad) $606 thousand in domestic deferred income tax
expense, a non-cash item, and $214 thousand ientuncome tax expense. In 2011, we had totalhmeco
tax expense of $1.2 million, including $1.1 milliondomestic deferred income tax expense, and $165
thousand in current income tax expense. Domestjdak effect of permanent differences betweeratak
GAAP accounting, such as incentive stock optionriiation, raised the implied tax rate to 41% ii20
The same effect occurred to some degree in 20tt@uah in general this effect will decline as the
profitability level increases. We had a defermrecbme tax benefit in 2013 as we had a loss befm@me
taxes in 2013.

In 2014, we expect to generate income before indaxes, and we expect to have both current
income tax expense and deferred income tax expaoserdingly.

Net Income (Loss)

Our 2013 net loss was $939 thousand as comparest ftocome of $1.2 million in 2012 and net
income of $2.1 million in 2011. Increased opem&xpenses and lower Gross Margin, somewhat dffset
higher revenue, were the most important factothéndecline from 2012 to 2013. Increased operating
expenses, somewhat offset by higher revenue andimg Gross Margin, was the most important factor i
the decline from 2011 to 2012.
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Net Income (Loss) attributable to Heska Corporation

Net loss attributable to Heska Corporation was #iilkon in 2013, as compared to net income
attributable to Heska Corporation of $1.2 million2012 and net income attributable to Heska Cotjmoraf
$2.1 million in 2011. The difference between fivie item and "Net Income (Loss)" above is theinebme
or loss attributable to the minority interest indda Imaging, which was net income of $257 thousand
2013. There were no corresponding entries for 2022011 as Heska Imaging was not consolidated int
our financial statements until February 24, 2013.

Liquidity, Capital Resources and Financial Conditian

We have incurred net cumulative negative cash ffom operations since our inception in 1988. For
the year ended December 31, 2013, we had net1&236 thousand. In 2013, net cash used in opasti
was $1.4 million. At December 31, 2013, we had$#illion of cash and cash equivalents, workingiteép
of $16.2 million and $4.8 million outstanding bomiags under our revolving line of credit, discusbetbw.

Net cash flows from operating activities used aafshl.4 million in 2013 as compared to
$369 thousand in 2012, a change of approximately §illion. A key factor in the change was a
$3.4 million change in cash used in moving fromorégd income in 2012 to reported loss in 2013 uditig
the impact on reported tax expense or benefit. hdehigher levels of accounts receivable, accquenable,
accrued liabilities and other current assets at gad 2012 than we did at year end 2011 and yeb?@13,
which had corresponding cash flow effects; we erpeed $4.2 million greater cash usage due to atsou
payable, accrued liabilities and other short taailities in 2013 as compared to 2012; we alscerpced
$3.8 million greater cash generated from accowusivable and other current assets in 2013 as cechpa
2012. We were provided $2.4 million greater casimfdeferred revenue, other long-term liabilitiesl a
other long-term assets, primarily related to uptfimeyments received in 2013 as compared to 2012.
Depreciation and amortization provided $798 thodsanre cash in 2013 as opposed to 2012, with the
increase primarily related to depreciation and dixatron from Heska Imaging. Net cash flows from
operating activities used cash of $369 thousar&i? as compared to provided cash of $4.9 millio2d11,
a change of $5.3 million. The largest factor ia thange was a $4.0 million decrease in cash prdvidm
accounts receivable as in 2012 we had a signifieast of our products ship to customers priorgaryend,
without such customers paying prior to year enceféect which was not present to the same degr2@1id.
In addition, our lower profitability level in 201&s compared to 2011, with a $942 thousand dedlicash
from net income and a related $450 thousand deitlinash provided by deferred tax expense, cortgibto
the decline. A $1.0 million refundable prepaymiemtexclusive negotiating rights on a potentialasiion
in 2012 but not 2011 also contributed to the chanye also experienced $555 thousand greater c&shin
inventory primarily related to increased transigrsventory to property and equipment for our instents
installed with customers where we have retainetungent ownership as well as $353 thousand legs cas
provided by lower depreciation and amortizationexqe, primarily related to lower depreciation on
instrument units available for customer rental vahieere fully depreciated in 2011. This was somdwha
offset by $2.5 million in cash from accounts pagalaiccrued liabilities and other items resultingdame
degree from the increase in our 2012 operatingresgseas compared to 2011.

Net cash flows from investing activities provideash of $71 thousand in 2013 as compared to using
cash of $1.5 million in 2012 and using cash of $tillion in 2011. The major factor in the change2D13
from 2012 was $5.0 million in proceeds from disgiosi of property, including non-core vaccine-rethte
intellectual property, which occurred in June 20P2irchases of property and equipment also incdease
$421 thousand in 2013 as compared to 2012. Thedafactor in the change was capitalized softwasts
related to a new customer relationship managenysters. Purchases of property and equipment inedeas
by $425 thousand in 2012 as compared to 2011 Wihargest factor in the change related to greatgrerty
and equipment purchases in our OVP segment.
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Net cash flows from financing activities provideakb of $1.5 million in 2013, provided cash of
$1.3 million in 2012 and used cash of $3.0 millior2011. In 2013, we borrowed $2.2 million undar bne
of credit and received $323 thousand in proceexs the issuance of common stock under our Employee
Stock Purchase Plan and upon option exerciseshwiece cash inflows, but we repaid $1.0 milliorother
debt which was a cash outflow. The increaseddir@edit borrowing was largely necessary to fumal t
other debt repayments as well as cash used inpawating activities. In 2012, we borrowed $2.6lionl
under our line of credit and received $390 thousanmoceeds from the issuance of common stock umaie
Employee Stock Purchase Plan and upon option ees;csomewhat offset by funds paid to participating
shareholders in our odd lot tender offer for shal@drs with 99 shares or less. These cash flows we
somewhat offset by $1.6 million in dividends wecpaln 2012, we essentially borrowed under our ihe
credit to finance dividends paid to shareholdeus,capital expenditures and cash used in our dpgrat
activities. In 2011, we used cash to fully repay @maining $3.1 million in line of credit borromgs, which
was partially offset by proceeds from the issuasfa@mmon stock under our Employee Stock Purch&se P
and upon option exercises.

At December 31, 2013, Heska Corporation had acsaectivable from Heska Imaging of
$3.3 million, including accrued interest, whichnglnates upon consolidation of our financial statetse
These monies accrue interest at the same interteshs Heska Corporation pays under its asset-based
revolving line of credit with Wells Fargo once pdsi.

At December 31, 2013, we had an account receiednie Cuattro Software, LLC of $892 thousand
and net accounts receivable from Cuattro, LLC df&thousand. These items are listed on our cafzteli
balance sheets as "Due from - related party" asrK&vWilson, our President and Chief Operatingdeff
Mrs. Wilson and trusts for their children and fanibld a 100% interest in Cuattro, LLC and CuattioC
owns a 100% interest in Cuattro Software, LLC. mAnies owed are to accrue interest at the sameesit
rate the Company pays under its credit and secagitgement with Wells Fargo once past due.

At December 31, 2013, we had a $1.4 million noteirable, including accrued interest, from
Cuattro Veterinary, LLC. The note is to pay inttrat the same interest rate as the Company palgs us
asset-based revolving line of credit with Wellsgéaand is due on March 15, 2016. Cuattro VeteyinarC
sells the same digital radiography solutions oets$iet United States that Heska Imaging sells iruthiged
States. The note is listed on our consolidatedrizal sheets as "note receivable — related partgeas S.
Wilson, Mrs. Wilson and trusts for their childremdafamily hold a majority interest in Cuattro Vetary,
LLC. This note was held by Heska Imaging at theetbf our acquisition of a majority interest in Kas
Imaging on February 24, 2013.

At December 31, 2013, we had a $15.0 million abastd revolving line of credit with Wells Fargo
which has a maturity date of December 31, 2015asqgb our credit and security agreement with Wells
Fargo. At December 31, 2013, we had $4.8 millibhasrowings outstanding on this line of crediturO
ability to borrow under this line of credit varieased upon available cash, eligible accounts rebkhand
eligible inventory. On December 31, 2013, anyredeon borrowings due was to be charged at adstate
of three month LIBOR plus 3.75% and payable montiWje are required to comply with various financial
and non-financial covenants, and we have madeuw&rigpresentations and warranties under our agreaeme
with Wells Fargo. Among the financial covenants mquirements for minimum capital monthly, minimum
net income quarterly and capital expenditures mgntRailure to comply with any of the covenants,
representations or warranties could result in @imdpin default on the loan and could cause aktaniding
amounts payable to Wells Fargo to become immeglidigd and payable or impact our ability to borrow
under the agreement. We were in compliance witfinaincial covenants as of December 31, 2013. We
failed to comply with the net income covenant adwife 30, 2013, for which we obtained a waiver and
subsequently negotiated new covenants as well astansion of our asset-based revolving line oflitneith
Wells Fargo to December 31, 2015. At DecembefB13, our available borrowing capacity based upon
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eligible accounts receivable and eligible inventongler our revolving line of credit was approxiniate
$3.8 million.

At December 31, 2013, we had other borrowings antihg totaling $501 thousand, all of which
were obligations of a Heska Imaging loan from Dgd.danden Financial Services, Inc. ("DLL"). Thaeo
bears an interest rate of 6% and is due in equaththopayments, including principal and intere$t, o
$13 thousand through June 2017. The note maydpaijat prior to maturity, but is subject to a surgean
such a circumstance. $132 thousand of principl@ated with this note is listed as short ternoon
consolidated balance sheets as it is due withieea. y

At December 31, 2013, our consolidated balancetslimaguded $13.7 million in non-controlling
interest. This represents the value of the aggeguasition in Heska Imaging of the Imaging MingritWe
estimated a weighted average valuation for thigipasand are accreting to this value over a tyessr
period using a weighted average cost of capitdBo85%. The cost of capital assumption was praitdeus
by a third party with expertise in estimating sitelms. The accretion is to be recorded as a cnadith will
tend to increase this entry over time, with thaesponding debit to directly reduce additional gaidapital
as we have an accumulated deficit. We intend &uate the value of this position every reportiegiqd
and adjust our accretion accordingly if necessary.

At December 31, 2013, our consolidated balancetsimeluded $3.4 million in Public Common
Stock subject to redemption. This representstineksve issued to acquire our position in Heskagimg,
which may be used to meet the purchase obligatiaCuattro 12-month Call Option or a Cuattro 18atio
Call Option is exercised under the Operating Agrertim We intend to mark this line item to markegrgv
applicable reporting period with the correspondiedit or credit taken directly to additional pamdaapital.

Our financial plan for 2014 indicates that our atgie cash and cash equivalents, together with cash
from operations and borrowings expected to be abiglunder our revolving line of credit, will befficient
to fund our operations through 2014 and into 20lBbwever, our actual results may differ from thiiam
and we may be required to consider alternativeegiras. We may be required to raise additionaltabip
the future. If necessary, we expect to raise thdsgéional funds through the increased sale ofornsr
leases, the sale of equity securities or the issiahnew term debt secured by the same assédis &
loans which were fully repaid in 2010. There isguarantee that additional capital will be avagetbbm
these sources on acceptable terms, if at all, artdin of these sources may require approval bstiagi
lenders. See "Risk Factors" in Item 1A of thisrRdrO-K for a discussion of some of the factors #fggct
our capital raising alternatives.

Under the Operating Agreement, should Heska Imagjiegt certain performance criteria, the
Imaging Minority has been granted a put optionetibss some or all of the Imaging Minority's remiam
45.4% position in Heska Imaging following the awdfibur financial statements in 2015, 2016 and 2017
Furthermore, should Heska Imaging meet certairopgdnce criteria, and the Imaging Minority fail to
exercise an applicable put to sell us all of thading Minority's position in Heska Imaging follovgnhe
audit of our financial statements in 2015, 2016 2047, we would have a call option to purchaseball,not
less than all, of the Imaging Minority's positionHleska Imaging.

We believe it is likely that Heska Imaging will midbe required performance criteria for its 2015
highest strike put in 2015. In this case, the lmadJinority would be granted a put following oudI5 audit
which could require us to deliver up to $17.0 ruoiilj as well as 25% of Heska Imaging's cash, tohase the
45.4% of Heska Imaging we do not own. If this jsutot exercised in full, we would have a call optto
purchase all, but not less than all, of the Imadytigority's position in Heska Imaging for $19.6 hah, as
well as 25% of Heska Imaging's cash. In both cagkie we have the right to deliver up to 55%lwé t
consideration in our Pubic Common Stock under gediacumstances, such stock is to be valued based
90% of market value (the "Delivery Stock Value"das limited to approximately 650 thousand shamnesny
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case. If the Delivery Stock Value is less thanrttzeket value of our stock at the time of the Asgign, we
do not have the right to deliver any Public Comroock as consideration.

If Heska Imaging meets the required performanderaai for its 2015 highest strike put in 2015, we
anticipate that either the Imaging Minority willercise its put or we will desire to exercise odt,
perhaps both, following our 2015 audit in 2016. iM/lwve intend to meet this payment obligation vithds
provided by our ongoing operations and assetdyldgplemented by debt financing and potentialihw
equity financing, there can be no assurance ouitsesill unfold according to our expectations. i§h
potential payment obligation in 2016 is an impottzomsideration for us in our cash management ibeGs

We would consider acquisitions if we felt they weamsistent with our strategic direction. We paid
$1.6 million in dividends in 2012, and while we nm@pnsider paying dividends again in the long tema,do
not anticipate the payment of any further dividefaighe foreseeable future. We conducted an otld |
tender offer in 2012 which could have led to theurehase of approximately $400 thousand of ourksfcall
eligible holders had chosen to participate, andemie may consider stock repurchase alternativas in
opportunistic manner or in the long term, we doanticipate any stock repurchase programs in the
foreseeable future.

A summary of our contractual obligations at Decendie 2013 is shown below:

Payments Due by Period (in thousands)

Less Than 1-3 4-5 After
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Contractual Obligations
Line of credit $ 4,798 $ 4,798 $ — $ — $ —
Unconditional purchase obligations 14,225 8,000 3,075 3,150 —
Operating Leases 15,241 1,760 3,213 3,028 7,240
Total contractual cash obligations $34,264 $ 14,558 $ 6,288 $ 6,178 $ 7,240

In addition to those agreements considered aboegendur contractual obligation is fixed, we are
party to commercial agreements which may requireusake milestone payments under certain
circumstances. Any milestone obligations whichb&beve are likely to be triggered but are notpadt are
included in "Unconditional Purchase Obligationsthi table above. We do not believe other potentia
milestone obligations, some of which we considdremf remote likelihood of ever being triggered| w
have a material impact on our liquidity, capitadaarces or financial condition in the foreseeabtark.

If Heska Imaging meets the required performanderaai for its 2015 highest strike put in 2015, we
anticipate that either the Imaging Minority willecise its put or we will desire to exercise odt,
perhaps both, following our 2015 audit in 2016.r fewther information, please see "Liquidity, Cabit
Resources and Financial Condition" above.

Net Operating Loss Carryforwards

As of December 31, 2013, we had a net domestiatipgrioss carryforward, or NOL, of
approximately$109.0million, a domestic alternative minimum tax crechirryforward of approximately
$297 thousand and a domestic research and develbpemecredit carryforward of approximately
$598 thousand for federal tax purposes. Our féd@d is expected to expire as follows if unused:
$103.1 million in 2018 through 2022, $5.5 million2024 and 2025 and $385 thousand in 2027. The NOL
and tax credit carryforwards are subject to altévaaminimum tax limitations and to examination thy tax
authorities. In addition, we had a "change of awhip" as defined under the provisions of Sectiga 8f the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (an "@BhipeChange”). We believe the latest Ownership
Change occurred at the time of our initial publfeong in July 1997.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Management has evaluated recent accounting proamerds and determined none would have a
material impact on the Company's financial statémen

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosuresabout Market Risk.

Market risk represents the risk of loss that magdnt the financial position, results of operations
cash flows due to adverse changes in financiatangnodity market prices and rates. We are exptsed
market risk in the areas of changes in United Statel foreign interest rates and changes in for@igrency
exchange rates as measured against the United 8Stidtar. These exposures are directly relatamito
normal operating and funding activities.

Interest Rate Risk

At December 31, 2013, there was approximately 8#ln outstanding on our line of credit with
Wells Fargo. We also had approximately $6.0 millid cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2013
the majority of which was invested in liquid intst®earing accounts. We had no interest rate hedge
transactions in place on December 31, 2013. Weplmiad an interest rate risk sensitivity analysisdal on
the above and an assumed one-percentage poinh$eddecrease in interest rates. If market rates
increase/decrease by one percentage point, we \egpktience a decrease/increase in annual ne¢sater
expense of approximately $7 thousand based onutstamding balances as of December 31, 2013.

Foreign Currency Risk

Our investment in foreign assets consists primaffilgur investment in our Swiss subsidiary.
Foreign currency risk may impact our results ofrafiens. In cases where we purchase inventoryén o
currency and sell corresponding products in anpthargross margin percentage is typically at biaked on
foreign currency exchange rates. In additionases where we may be generating operating income in
foreign currencies, the magnitude of such operatingme when translated into U.S. dollars will beisk
based on foreign currency exchange rates. Oueagmets with suppliers and customers vary signifigan
regard to the existence and extent of currencysamjent and other currency risk sharing provisionge had
no foreign currency hedge transactions in placBecember 31, 2013.

We have a wholly-owned subsidiary in Switzerlandolituses the Swiss Franc as its functional
currency. We purchase inventory in foreign curresicprimarily Euros and Japanese Yen, and sell
corresponding products in U.S. dollars. We aldlopseducts in foreign currencies, primarily Eutasd
Japanese Yen, where our inventory costs are langélS. dollars. Based on our 2013 results ofafens,
if foreign currency exchange rates were to stresmgihieaken by 25% against the dollar, we would exaec
resulting loss/gain in income before income taXespproximately $7 thousand, if all other curresoieere
to strengthen/weaken by 25% against the Swiss Frangvould expect a resulting gain/loss in incorafolke
income taxes of approximately $135 thousand aatl dther currencies were to strengthen/weaken38% 2
against the Euro, we would expect a resulting ¢@8s/in income before income taxes of approximately
$149 thousand.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Heska Corporation
Loveland, Colorado

We have audited the accompanying consolidated talsimeets of Heska Corporation and
subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 312201 2013, and the related consolidated stateroénts
operations, stockholders' equity, comprehensiveme(loss), and cash flows for each of the yeatisen
three-year period ended December 31, 2013. Outsaaldb included the financial statement schedule
appearing under Item 15. These financial statenamdinancial statement schedule are the respbtysds
the Company's management. Our responsibility expyess an opinion on the financial statements and
financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstas of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standagisnethat we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the finanatahstnts are free of material misstatement. Thep@agn
is not required to have, nor were we engaged tmpey an audit of its internal control over finaalci
reporting. Our audit included consideration of inté control over financial reporting as a basisdesigning
audit procedures that are appropriate in the cistantes, but not for the purpose of expressingparam on
the effectiveness of the Company's internal comtver financial reporting. Accordingly, we expresssuch
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on & besis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall filmhstatement presentation. We believe that oditau
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetagaferred to above present fairly, in all materia
respects, the financial position of Heska Corporaéind subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 an8l, 20t
the results of their operations and their cash$léov each of the years in the three-year periatkén
December 31, 2013, in conformity with accountinmgiples generally accepted in the United States of
America. Also, in our opinion, the related finan@tatement schedule, when considered in relatighe
basic financial statements taken as a whole, ptesainly, in all material respects, the informatiset forth
therein.

/sl EKS&H LLLP
March 31, 2014
Boulder, Colorado
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

December 31,

2012 2013
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,784 $ 6,016
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of

$155 and $209, respectively 11,044 11,409
Due from - related party — 1,200
Inventories, net 12,483 11,687
Deferred tax asset, current 1,130 2,156
Other current assets 2,514 1,443

Total current assets 32,955 33,911
Property and equipment, net 6,005 9,928
Note receivable — related party — 1,407
Goodwill and other intangibles 1,120 21,571
Deferred tax asset, net of current portion 26,746 26,358
Other long-term assets — 378

Total assets $ 66,826 $ 93,553

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 5,298 $ 4,448
Accrued liabilities 4,132 4,420
Current portion of deferred revenue 2,407 3,908
Line of credit 2,552 4,798
Other short-term borrowings, including currenttfmor of long-term

note payable — 132

Total current liabilities 14,389 17,706
Long-term note payable, net of current portion — 369
Deferred revenue, net of current portion, and other 3,575 11,298

Total liabilities 17,964 29,373
Commitments and contingencies
Non-Controlling Interest — 13,659
Public Common Stock subject to redemption — 3,405
Stockholders' equity:

Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 2,500,000 steart®rized; none

issued or outstanding — —
Common stock, $.01 par value, 7,500,000 sharémarnéd, none

issued or outstanding — —
Public common stock, $.01 par value, 7,500,000eshauthorized,

5,372,336 and 5,845,931 shares issued and outstgmdspectively 54 58
Additional paid-in capital 218,544 217,588
Accumulated other comprehensive income 296 580
Accumulated deficit (170,032 (171,110

Total stockholders' equity 48,862 47,116
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 66,826 $ 93,553

See accompanying notes to consolidated financigdrsents.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenue:
Core companion animal health
Other vaccines, pharmaceuticals and products
Total revenue, net

Cost of revenue
Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Selling and marketing
Research and development
General and administrative
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Interest and other (income) expense, net
Income (loss) before income taxes
Income tax expense:
Current income tax expense
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)
Total income tax expense (benefit)

Net income (loss)
Net income (loss) attributable to non-controllingerest
Net income (loss) attributable to Heska Corporatio

Basic net income (loss) per share attributabledsldd Corporation
Diluted net income (loss) per share attributableléska Corporation

Weighted average outstanding shares used to corbpsie
net income (loss) per share attributable to H€xskgooration

Weighted average outstanding shares used to corduted
net income (loss) per share attributable to H€xskgooration

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2012 2013
57,481 $ 61,502 66,404
12,584 11,303 11,935
70,065 72,805 78,339
40,878 41,704 47,707
29,187 31,101 30,632
15,167 18,339 19,428
1,650 958 1,500
9,121 9,646 11,134
25,938 28,943 32,062
3,249 2,158 (1,430
(117 135 37
3,366 2,023 (1,393
165 214 183
1,056 606 (637
1,221 820 (454
2,145 $ 1,203 (939
— — 257
2,145 1,203 (1,199
$ 041 $ 023 (0.21)
$ 040 $ 022 (0.21)
5,237 5,326 5,755
5,338 5,489 5,755

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@gsients.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2012 2013

Net income (loss) $ 2,145 $ 1,203 $ (939
Other comprehensive income (expense):

Minimum pension liability (20) (20) 182

Unrealized gain (loss) on available for sale itwesnts (8 — 30

Foreign currency translation (14 74 72
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 2,103 $ 1,257 $ (6595
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to nortroling interest $ — $ — $ 257
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Hestap@ration $ 2,103 $ 1,257 $ (912

See accompanying notes to consolidated financigdrsents.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands)

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Common Stock Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated  Stockholders'
Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Equity
Balances, January 1, 2011 5,231 $ 52 $ 217,240 $ 284 $ (171,778 $ 45,798
Net income (loss) — — — — 2,145 2,145
Issuance of common stock related to options, ESPP
and other 19 — 124 — — 124
Recognition of stock based compensation — — 414 — — 414
Minimum pension liability adjustments — — — (20 — (20
Unrealized gain (loss) on available for sale
investments — — — 8) — 8
Foreign currency translation adjustments — — — (14) — (14
Balances, December 31, 2011 5,250 52 217,778 242 (169,633 48,439
Net income — — — — 1,203 1,203
Issuance of common stock related to options, ESPP
and other 122 2 388 — — 390
Recognition of stock based compensation — — 378 — — 378
Dividends paid — — — — (1,602 (1,602
Minimum pension liability adjustments — — — (20 — (20
Foreign currency translation adjustments — — — 74 — 74
Balances, December 31, 2012 5,372 54 218,544 296 (170,032 48,862
Net income (loss) — — — — (939 (939
Issuance of common stock related to options, ESPP
and other 55 — 323 — — 323
Recognition of stock based compensation — — 423 — — 423
Stock issued for Heska Imaging 419 4 3,571 — — 3,575
Stock issued for Heska Imaging Mark to Market — — (3,409 — — (3,409
Accretion of non-controlling interest — — (1,869 — — (1,869
Accrued distribution for Heska Imaging minority — — — — (139) (139
Minimum pension liability adjustments — — — 182 — 182
Unrealized gain on available for sale investments — — — 30 — 30
Foreign currency translation adjustments — — — 72 — 72
Balances, December 31, 2013 5,846 $ 58 $ 217,588 $ 580 $ (171,110 $ 47,116

See accompanying notes to consolidated financisdsients.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2012 2013
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss) $ 2,145 $ 1,203 $ (939
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to qasivided by
(used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,052 1,699 2,497
Deferred tax (benefit) expense 1,056 606 (637
Stock based compensation 414 378 423
Unrealized (gain) loss on foreign currency transtat 10 46 20
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 929 (3,099 (159
Inventories (850 (1,405 (1,689
Other current assets (93 (1,552 (642
Accounts payable (169 1,298 (2,279
Accrued liabilities and other (259 741 (130
Other non-current assets — — 179
Deferred revenue and other (352 (289 2,312
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activ 4,888 (369 (1,399
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES:
Investment in subsidiary — — (3,019
Purchases of property and equipment (2,084 (1,509 (1,930
Proceeds from disposition of property and equipment — — 5,020
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activ (1,084 (1,509 71
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 124 390 323
Proceeds from (repayments of) line of credit boings, net (3,079 2,552 2,246
Proceeds from (repayments of) other debt — — (1,029
Dividends paid to stockholders — (1,602 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activ (2,955 1,340 1,544
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH )(9 (20 14
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 840 (548 232
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,492 6,332 5,784
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 6,332 $ 5,784 $ 6,016
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest 28 $ 77 $ 78
Cash paid for income taxes 214 $ 153 84
Non-cash transfer of inventory to property and equipime
and other long-term assets $ 351 $ 1,327 $ 3,950
Prepaid applied to acquisition of Heska Imaging $ — $ — $ 1,000
Issuance of stock for investment in subsidiary $ — $ — $ 3571
Accretion of non-controlling interest $ — $ — $ 1,867

See accompanying notes to consolidated financigdrsents.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS

Heska Corporation ("Heska" or the "Company") depsjananufactures, markets, sells and supports
veterinary products. Heska's core focus is orcéimne and feline companion animal health markets.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiectade the accounts of the Company, its
wholly-owned subsidiaries and its majority-ownetdsdiaries since their respective dates of acqomst
All material intercompany transactions and balar@eg been eliminated in consolidation. Where the
Company's ownership of a subsidiary is less th@94d,@he non-controlling interest is reported on the
Company's consolidated balance sheets. The ndmetiog interest in the Company's consolidated net
income is reported as "Net income (loss) attribletédn non-controlling interest”" on the Company's
consolidated statements of operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires manageneemiake estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, theloksire of contingent assets and liabilities atdate of the
financial statements and the reported amountsveihtges and expenses during the reporting periaduah
results could differ from those estimates. Sigaifit estimates are required when establishinglliveance
for doubtful accounts and the provision for exagissblete inventory, in determining the period owéich
the Company's obligations are fulfilled under agrepts to license product rights and/or technolagjyts,
evaluating long-lived and intangible assets forampent, determining the allocation of purchasegptinder
purchase accounting, estimating the expense agswewth the granting of stock options and in deiieing
the need for, and the amount of, a valuation alimezon deferred tax assets.

Trade Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at thedeg@mount. The allowance for doubtful accounts
is the Company's best estimate of the amount dfgirie credit losses in the Company's existing ausou
receivable. The Company determines the allowaasedon historical write-off experience. The Conypa
reviews its allowance for doubtful accounts monthBast due balances over 90 days and over aiggecif
amount are reviewed individually for collectabilitAccount balances are charged against the allosvafter
all means of collection have been exhausted anddtemntial for recovery is considered remote. The
Company does not have any off-balance-sheet argisure related to its customers.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject@mmpany to a concentration of credit risk consiist o
cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivabieCompany maintains the majority of its cash eash
equivalents with financial institutions that manangmt believes are creditworthy in the form of dechan
deposits. The Company has no significant off-begasheet concentrations of credit risk such asgore
exchange contracts, options contracts or othergioreurrency hedging arrangements. Its accouctivable
balances are due primarily from domestic veterimdinics and individual veterinarians, and both @stic
and international corporations.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, apprioximates market, and include short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturitie$ less than three months. The Company valueglite
and Japanese Yen cash accounts at the spot mandiginf exchange rate as of each balance sheetndtite,
changes due to foreign exchange fluctuations recbird current earnings. The Company held 332,888 a
321,411 Euros at December 31, 2012 and 2013, réégglgc The Company held 3,406,393 and 1,252,220
Yen at December 31, 2012 and 2013, respectivelye dompany held 65,472 and 209,486 Swiss Francs at
December 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively. Thenhapf the Company's cash and cash equivalents are
held at U.S.-based or Swiss-based financial in&iita in accounts not insured by governmentaliestit

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company's financial instruments consist of @éaghcash equivalents, short-term trade
receivables and payables and the Company's regalivie of credit. The carrying values of cash aagh
equivalents and short-term trade receivables apapes approximate fair value. The fair valuehaf t
Company's line of credit balance is estimated baseclirrent rates available for similar debt withikr
maturities and collateral, and at December 31, 2022013, approximates the carrying value duegriiyn
to the floating rate of interest on such debt insients.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or etauking the first-in, first-out method. Inventory
manufactured by the Company includes the cost eériad, labor and overhead. If the cost of inveie®
exceeds estimated fair value, provisions are madeduce the carrying value to estimated fair value

Inventories, net consist of the following (in thansls):

December 31,

2012 2013
Raw materials $ 5,275 $ 5,787
Work in process 3,342 2,920
Finished goods 4,671 4,784
Allowance for excess or obsolete inventory (8095 (1,809
$ 12,483 $ 11,687

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost améclafed on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets. diedd improvements are amortized over the applkchdase
period or their estimated useful lives, whicheweshorter. Maintenance and repairs are chargexipense
when incurred, and major renewals and improvemengsapitalized.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Property and equipment consist of the followingtfiousands):

December 31,

Estimated
Useful Life 2012 2013
Land N/A $ 377 % 377
Building 10 to 20 years 2,678 2,868
Machinery and equipment 3 to 15 years 30,346 36,107
Leasehold and building improvements 7 to 15 years ,42% 5,838
Construction in progress 1,091 753
39,921 45,943
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ,9(38 (36,015

$ 6,005 $ 9,928

From time to time, the Company utilizes marketimggpams whereby its instruments in inventory
may be placed in a customer's location on a réatsis. The cost of these instruments is transféae
machinery and equipment or other long-term assetslapreciated, typically over a five to seven ys=iod
depending on the circumstance under which theungnt is placed with the customer. During 201,220
and 2013, total costs transferred from inventoryenapproximately $351 thousand, $1.3 million and
$3.9 million, respectively.

Depreciation and amortization expense for propanty equipment was $2.1 million, $1.7 million and
$2.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2@012 and 2013, respectively.

Capitalized Software

The Company capitalizes third-party software costere appropriate, and reports such capitalized
costs, net of accumulated amortization, on thepeny and equipment” line of its consolidated be¢an
sheets. The Company had $83 thousand and $794ahdwf such capitalized costs, net of accumulated
amortization, on the "property and equipment” lifigs consolidated balance sheets as of Decemniher 3
2012 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Capatlsoftware costs in a given year are reportetien
"purchases of property and equipment" line iterthefCompany's consolidated statements of cash .flows
The Company had $121 thousand, $11 thousand argdtB80sand of capitalized software costs reported o
the "purchases of property and equipment" line ibémis consolidated statements of cash flowsHeryears
ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, resparctivel

Realizability of Long-Lived Assets

The Company continually evaluates whether everdscanumstances have occurred that indicate the
remaining estimated useful life of long-lived assety warrant revision, or that the remaining bedaof
these assets may not be recoverable. When deernedsary, the Company completes this evaluation by
comparing the carrying amount of the assets withestimated undiscounted future cash flows assatiat
with them. If such evaluations indicate that theife undiscounted cash flows of amortizable langd
assets are not sufficient to recover the carryelgey of such assets, the assets are adjustedrtestimated
fair values.

Goodwill
Goodwill is subject to an annual assessment fomimgent or sooner if there is an indication of

impairment. Impairment is indicated when the dagyamount of the related reporting unit is greétan its
estimated fair value.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The Company's recorded goodwill relates to the lalyr2013 acquisition of a majority interest in
Cuattro Veterinary USA, LLC and the 1997 acquisitad Heska AG, the Company's Swiss subsidiary.s Thi
goodwill is reviewed at least annually for impaimmhe This impairment assessment is completed at the
reporting unit level. The Company completed itauai analysis of the Company's Swiss subsidiary
estimating that the fair value of the reportingticeeds the carrying value of the reporting ingituding
goodwill at December 31, 2013 and determined th@®no indicated impairment. The key inputs to the
estimated fair value included estimates of futuddifability for the reporting unit as well as damt rate and
operating income terminal multiple. The Companiedwined there is no indication of impairment for
goodwill related to the acquisition of Cuattro fatary USA, LLC at December 31, 2013. As this
acquisition closed in February 2013, annual goddgsgessment is required to begin in 2014. At
December 31, 2012 and 2013, goodwill was approxyp&tl.0 million and $21.0 million, respectivelych
was included in the assets of the Core Companiam&rHealth segment. There can be no assurante tha
future goodwill impairments will not occur if prajeed financial results are not met, or otherwise.

Revenue Recognition

The Company generates its revenues through saledibicts and services, licensing and sale of
product and technology rights, and research andldement services. Revenue is accounted for in
accordance with the guidelines provided by SEC feradion of Staff Accounting Bulletins, Topic 13:
Revenue Recognition. The Company's policy is togeize revenue when the applicable revenue
recognition criteria have been met, which generaltjude the following:

» Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
» Delivery has occurred or services rendered,;

* Price is fixed or determinable; and

» Collectability is reasonably assured.

Revenue from the sale of products is generallygeized after both the goods are shipped to the
customer and acceptance has been received, ifedgwith an appropriate provision for estimatetdmes
and other allowances. The terms of the custommangements generally pass title and risk of ownitsh
the customer at the time of shipment. Certainarust arrangements provide for acceptance provisions
Revenue for these arrangements is not recognizildhenacceptance has been received or the aceapta
period has lapsed. The Company maintains an atlogvéor sales returns based upon its customeri@slic
and historical experience. Shipping and handlmgtcharged to customers are included as revandahe
related costs are recorded as a component of Epebaucts sold.

In addition to its direct sales force, the Compatiljzes distributors to sell its products. Dibtrtors
purchase goods from the Company, take title toelygo®ds and resell them to their customers in the
distributors' territory.

Upfront payments received by the Company undengaments for product, patent or technology
rights in which the Company retains an intereshenunderlying product, patent or technology arigilly
deferred, and revenue is subsequently recognizedtbe estimated life of the agreement, produdgriaor
technology. Similarly, upfront payments receivediie Company under agreements where the Company is
obligated to maintain a product or technology gold third party and/or transfer know-how or tedbgg to
a third party are initially deferred and revenusubsequently recognized over the estimated liteef
agreement. The Company received upfront paymetebrtg $0, $0 and $7 million in 2011, 2012 and 201
respectively. Revenue from royalties is recogniaethe Company is informed of sales on which it is
entitled to royalties.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

For multiple-element arrangements that are notesilbp a higher level of authoritative literatutteg
Company follows the authoritative guidance for actting for revenue arrangements with multiple
deliverables in determining the separate unitscobanting. For those arrangements subject to gpipte
separation criteria, the Company must determinghenghe various elements meet the criteria to be
accounted for as separate elements. If the elsngannot be separated, revenue is recognized eneeue
recognition criteria for the entire arrangementehbgen met or over the period that the Company's
obligations to the customer are fulfilled, as appiate. If the elements are determined to be séyparthe
revenue is allocated to the separate elements loasedative fair value and recognized separataiyefich
element when the applicable revenue recognitidereihave been met, subject to revenue defertedated
to be sufficient to cover the cost of servicinglsoevenue. In accounting for these multiple elemen
arrangements, the Company must make determinatomsgt whether elements can be accounted for
separately and make estimates regarding theiivelfatr values.

Cost of Products Sold

Royalties payable in connection with certain licegsaagreements (see Note 9) are reflected in dost o
products sold as incurred.

Sock-Based Compensation

During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012618, the Company's income from operations
and income before income taxes were reduced by Sléand, $378 thousand and $423 thousand,
respectively, and net income was reduced by $3d@tnd, $219 thousand and $380 thousand, respgctive
for compensation related to stock options issuebstiares issued under our employee stock purchese p
Basic and diluted earnings per share were redug&® 197 and $0.07 in 2011, $0.04 and $0.04 in 201®
$0.07 and $0.07 in 2013. For all years presetiede was no material impact on cash flow from apens
and cash flow from financing activities. At Decesni31, 2013, the Company had two stock-based
compensation plans. See Note 7 for a descripfitihese plans and additional disclosures regarttieg
plans.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incuAédertising expenses were $621 thousand,
$701 thousand and $386 thousand for the years ddeleember 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company records a current provision for incémxes based on estimated amounts payable or
refundable on tax returns filed or to be filed egelr. Deferred tax assets and liabilities aregeized for
the future tax consequences attributable to diffege between the financial statement carrying atsafn
existing assets and liabilities and their respedax bases and operating loss and tax creditfoanrgrds.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measuried) @nacted tax rates, in each tax jurisdictiopeeked to
apply to taxable income in the years in which theseporary differences are expected to be recovared
settled. The effect on deferred tax assets ahdities of a change in tax rates is recognizedperations in
the period that includes the enactment date. Vheati change in deferred tax assets and lialsliie the
period measures the deferred tax expense or béoefite period. Deferred tax assets are reduged b
valuation allowance based on a judgmental assesshawailable evidence if the Company is unable to
conclude that it is more likely than not that samnall of the deferred tax assets will be realized.
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Basic and Diluted Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic net income (loss) per common share is cordpuging the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. &iluet income (loss) per share is computed usmgum
of the weighted average number of shares of constamk outstanding, and, if not anti-dilutive, tHiteet of
outstanding common stock equivalents (such as stptins and warrants) determined using the trgasur
stock method.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 @b#, 2he Company reported net income
attributable to Heska Corporation and thereforgtigie common stock equivalent securities, as caegbu
using the treasury method (but excluding optionguichase fractional shares resulting from the Goyis
December 2010 1-for-10 reverse stock split), welded to basic weighted average shares outstanalinigef
period to derive the weighted average shares foredi earnings per share calculation. Common stock
equivalent securities other than options to pureliesctional shares that were anti-dilutive for tivelve
months ended December 31, 2011 and 2012, and ¢éhercluded, were outstanding options to purchase
1,029,151 and 643,094 shares of common stock, cigply. These securities are anti-dilutive priffyadue
to exercise prices greater than the average tramting of the Company's common stock during thdvieve
months ended December 31, 2011 and 2012.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2013 tmepany reported a net loss attributable to
Heska Corporation and therefore all common stockvadent securities would be anti-dilutive and weaod
included in the diluted earnings per share calmdbr the period. Common stock equivalent sei@si
other than options to purchase fractional shar@swiere anti-dilutive for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2013, and therefore excluded, wesganding options to purchase 1,321,232 shares of
common stock.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) includes net incomasseljl for the results of certain stockholders'
equity changes. Such changes include foreign ecyrigems and minimum pension liability adjustmentd
December 31, 2011, Accumulated Other Comprehemsoane (Loss) consists of $838 thousand gain for
cumulative translation adjustments, $609 thousassl for unrealized pension liability and $13 thowusaf
unrealized gain on available for sale investmeitsDecember 31, 2012, Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss) consists of $912 thmaligain for cumulative translation adjustments,
$629 thousand loss for unrealized pension liabéitg $13 thousand of unrealized gain on availabledle
investments. At December 31, 2013, AccumulateceOftomprehensive Income (Loss) consists of
$984 thousand gain for cumulative translation adjests, $447 thousand loss for unrealized pengadility
and $43 thousand of unrealized gain on availabledte investments.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of the Company's Swiss isidy is the Swiss Franc. Assets and liabilities
of the Company's Swiss subsidiary are translated) ke exchange rate in effect at the balancet siate.
Revenue and expense accounts and cash flows aséateal using an average of exchange rates int effec
during the period. Cumulative translation gaind krsses are shown in the consolidated balancésshga
separate component of stockholders' equity. Exgigains and losses arising from transactions
denominated in foreign currencies (i.e., transacgains and losses) are recognized as a compohettteo
income (expense) in current operations, as areagxyEhgains and losses on intercompany transactions
expected to be settled in the near term.

-54-



HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Management has evaluated recent accounting proamerds and determined none would have a
material impact on the Company's financial statésen

3. ACQUISITION AND RELATED PARTY ITEMS

On February 24, 2013, the Company acquired a 5h6&8est in Cuattro Veterinary USA, LLC
("Cuattro Vet USA") for approximately $7.6 millian cash and stock, including more than $4 milliorcash
and over 400 thousand shares of Heska stock (tbguigition"). Immediately following and as a re<sofl
the transaction, former Cuattro Vet USA unit hokdewned approximately 7.2% of the Company's Public
Common Stock. The remaining minority position (45)4n Cuattro Vet USA is subject to purchase by
Heska under performance-based puts and calls fioiipealendar year 2015, 2016 and 2017. Should &lesk
undergo a change in control, as defined, priohéoend of 2017, Cuattro Vet USA minority unit hoklevill
be entitled to sell their Cuattro Vet USA unitsHeska at the highest call value they could havereiise
obtained. The Company's position in Cuattro VeAUkSsubject to premium repurchase or discountésl sa
under calls and puts expiring 18 months followihg tlosing of the transaction.

The Company accounted for the acquisition purstteASC No. 805, "Business Combinations."
Accordingly, it recorded assets acquired, lial@itassumed and non-controlling interests at tisémated
fair values. The intangible assets and non-cdimigpinterest were valued based on a report from an
independent third party. The following summarittess aggregate consideration paid by the Companytend
allocation of the purchase price based on currgimates as the Company continues to gather intiwméeo
evaluate the appropriate accounting result (inshods):

Consideration

Cast $ 4,073
Stock 3,571
Total $ 7,644
Inventories $ 1,466
Note from Cuattro Veterinary, LLC, due March 1518 1,360
Other tangible assets 1,278
Intangible assets 688
Goodwill 19,994
Notes payable and other borrowings (1,527)
Accounts payable (1,424)
Other assumed liabilities (2,399)
Total Net Assets Acquired $ 19,436
Non-controlling interest (11,792)
Total $ 7,644

Intangible assets and their amortization periodsaarfollows:

Useful Life
(in years) Fair Value
Trade name 2.75 $ 688

$ 688
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HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The Company believes goodwill is a function of sal/éactors. Cuattro Vet USA had assembled a
workforce highly knowledgeable in the veterinanaging area. These individuals had acquired tlieiriga
necessary to identify opportunities for the Cuatted USA to sell products, including training redtto
which components from existing systems could bezetl within the Cuattro Vet USA's solution to mitize
the out-of-pocket cost to the customer. CuattroW®A had demonstrated an ability to combine disfear
assets including but not limited to digital radiaghy detectors, positioning aides such as tunmelgables,
viewing computers and other accessories alongemthedded software and support, data hosting aed oth
services to provide customers with a simple, affitiand convenient experience in utilizing advardata
imaging technology far in excess of what a typaatomer could have created individually with sanibut
separately purchased assets and services. Thea@grapticipated bundling and cross promotion pnogta
including potentially in one customer contract, l[doenhance the revenue of both the Company andrGuat
Vet USA following the Acquisition. The ability dfuattro Vet USA to generate estimated future ckosinsf
due to these factors supports the goodwill caledlat the closing of the Acquisition and the cureamrying
value of the goodwill on the Company's consoliddteldnce sheets. The Company estimates it had
approximately $6.9 million in tax deductible gootliiom the Acquisition at the closing of the Acgition.

Cuattro Vet USA was subsequently renamed HeskaiimgagS, LLC ("Heska Imaging") and
markets, sells and supports digital radiographywtrdsound products along with embedded softwacde a
support, data hosting and other services.

Shawna M. Wilson, Clint Roth, DVM, Steven M. Asakor; Rodney A. Lippincott, Kevin S.
Wilson and Cuattro, LLC own approximately 29.75%3%%0, 4.09%, 3.07%, 0.05% and 0.05% of Heska
Imaging, respectively. Kevin S. Wilson is the Rieat and Chief Operating Officer of the Compang #re
spouse of Shawna M. Wilson. Steven M. Asakowiczeseas Executive Vice President, Companion Animal
Health Sales for the Company. Rodney A. Lippinsettves as Executive Vice President, Companion Ahim
Health Sales for the Company. Mr. Wilson, Mrs. 81 and trusts for their children and family owh0®%
interest in Cuattro, LLC. Cuattro, LLC owns a 100%erest in Cuattro Software, LLC. Mr. Wilson,
Mrs. Wilson and trusts for their children and fanolwn a majority interest in Cuattro Veterinary,Cland
Cuattro Medical, LLC.

Since the Acquisition closed, Cuattro, LLC chargttka Imaging $6.8 million, primarily related to
digital imaging products, for which there is an ariging supply contract with minimum purchase
obligations, software and services as well as atperating expenses; Heska Corporation chargedaHesk
Imaging $2.2 million, primarily related to salegpexses; Heska Corporation net charged Cuattro, LLC
$140 thousand, primarily related to facility usagel other services.

At December 31, 2013, Heska Imaging had a $1.4amiliote receivable, including accrued interest,
from Cuattro Veterinary, LLC, which is due on Marth, 2016 and which is listed as "Note receivable —
related party" on the Company's consolidated balaheets; Heska Imaging has accounts receivalofe fro
Cuattro Software, LLC of $892 thousand, which uded in "Due from - related party" on the Company
consolidated balance sheets; Heska Corporatiométaalccounts receivable from Cuattro, LLC of
$110 thousand which is included in "Due from - retparty” on the Company's consolidated balaneetsh
Heska Imaging had net accounts receivable fromt@yati C of $198 thousand which is included in "Due
from - related party" on the Company's consoliddtaldnce sheets; Heska Corporation had accounts
receivable from Heska Imaging of $3.3 million, inding accrued interest, which eliminated in corgadlon
of the Company's financial statements; all monigsdaccrue interest at the same interest rate Heska
Corporation pays under its credit and security exgient with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association
("Wells Fargo") once past due with the exceptiothefnote receivable, which accrues at this raits to
maturity date.
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The aggregate position in Heska Imaging of the hiolitlers who hold the 45.4% of Heska Imaging
that Heska Corporation does not own (the "Put Valisebeing accreted to its estimated redemptidoevan
accordance with Heska Imaging's Operating Agreem8irice the Operating Agreement contains certain p
rights that are out of the control of the Companythoritative guidance requires the non-controllintgrest,
which includes the estimated value of such puttsigto be displayed outside of the equity sectithe
consolidated balance sheets. The adjustment tease or decrease the Put Value to its expectedeen
value and to estimate any distributions requiredeuntdeska Imaging's Operating Agreement to the unit
holders who hold the 45.4% of Heska Imaging thatkdeCorporation does not own (the "Imaging Mindjity
each reporting period is recorded to stockhola=ygity in accordance with United States Generatigepted
Accounting Principles.

The following is a reconciliation of the non-cordlireg interest balance (in thousands):

Beginning balance at closing date of February B432 $ 11,792
Accretion of Put Value $ 1,867
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 13,659

In addition, the Company recorded an estimatediloigion to the Imaging Minority the Company
believes is contractually required under Heska Inmglg Operating Agreement of $139 thousand, which
effected the Company's accumulated deficit andugctliabilities at December 31, 2013.

Cuattro Vet USA generated net revenue of $12.7anithnd net income of $566 thousand, inclusive
of net income of $257 thousand attributable to controlling interest, for the period from Februad;, 2013
to December 31, 2013. The following unauditedfprana financial information presents the combined
results of the Company and Cuattro Vet USA, in amals, as if the Acquisition had closed on
January 1, 2012.

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2013
Revenue, net $ 83,122 $ 79,239
Net income (loss) attributable to Heska Corpor: 1,132 (1,948
Basic earnings (loss) per share attributable tck&l€orporation $ 0.20 $ (0.39)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable ¢ské Corporation 0.19 (0.39)

4. CREDIT FACILITY AND LONG-TERM DEBT

The Company has a credit and security agreemehtWiélls Fargo Bank, National Association
which expires December 31, 2015. The agreemehitdas a $15.0 million asset-based revolving line of
credit with a stated interest rate at DecembeG13 of LIBOR plus 3.75% (4.00%). There is an ainu
minimum interest charge of $100 thousand undeagineement. Amounts due under the credit faciliey a
secured by a first security interest in essentalllpf the Company's assets excluding assetsisgdine term
debt referenced below, which is an obligation ofkéelmaging and which was outstanding when the
Company acquired a majority interest in Heska ImggiUnder the agreement, the Company is required t
comply with certain financial and non-financial emants. Among the financial covenants are reqursn
for minimum capital monthly, minimum net income ¢pealy and capital expenditures monthly. The antoun
available for borrowings under the line of credities based upon available cash, eligible accaantsvable
and eligible inventory. As of December 31, 20h&ré was $4.8 million of borrowings outstanding drete
was approximately $3.8 million available capacdy horrowings under the line of credit agreement.
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Long-term debt consists of the following (dollanghousands):

December 31,

2012 2013
Term loan with a financial entity, secured by demgoipment, due
in monthly installments beginning July 2012 witle thalance
paid in full in June 2017 and a stated interest cdit6.0%. $ — $ 501
Less current portion of long-term debt — 132
Long-term debt, net of current portion $ — $ 369

Maturities of long-term debt as of December 31,2@&re as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31,

2014 $ 132
2015 141
2016 149
2017 78

$ 501

5. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST AND OTHER EX PENSE (INCOME)
INFORMATION

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2012 2013

(in thousands)

Interest and other expense (income):

Interest income $ (268 % 95 $ (127)

Interest expense 124 117 74

Other, net 27 113 16
$ (117 3 135 $ (37)

6. INCOME TAXES

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had a domestioperating loss carryforward ("NOL"), of
approximately$109.0million, a domestic alternative minimum tax creafitapproximately $297 thousand and
a domestic research and development tax creditfoanard of approximately $598 thousand for fedéaal
purposes. The Company's federal NOL is expectedpae as follows if unused: $103.1 million in130
through 2022, $5.5 million in 2024 and 2025 and38tbusand in 2027. The NOL and tax credit
carryforwards are subject to alternative minimumlaitations and to examination by the tax autties. In
addition, the Company had a "change of ownerstipiedined under the provisions of Section 382 ef th
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (an "@hipeChange"). The Company does not believe this
Ownership Change will place a significant restagton its ability to utilize its NOL in the futurel'he
Company has established a valuation allowance sigiose NOL's for which it is more likely than nioat
they will expire unutilized. There can be no aasge that valuation allowance adjustments willowmur if
projected financial results are not met, or othsewiOn September 13, 2013, the IRS releasedrle fi
tangible property regulations under section 16226%8] which generally apply to taxable years begigion
or after January 1, 2014. The company has revighefinal regulations, and does not anticipate any
material financial statement impact resulting fritvese final regulations.
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The Company is subject to income taxes in the féderal jurisdiction, and various foreign, statd an
local jurisdictions. Tax regulations within eachigdiction are subject to the interpretation @& thlated tax
laws and regulations and require significant judgite apply. In the United States, the tax ye&H02-

2012 remain open to examination by the federathateRevenue Service and the tax years 2009 — 2012
remain open for various state taxing authorities.

The components of income (loss) before income taee as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2012 2013
Domestic $ 3,189 % 1,869 $ (1,508)
Foreign 177 154 115
$ 3366 % 2,023 % (1,393)

Temporary differences that give rise to the comptsef deferred tax assets are as follows (in
thousands):

December 31,

2012 2013
Current deferred tax assets:
Inventory $ 323 $ 692
Accrued compensation 251 131
Net operating loss carryforwar— domestic 45 1,589
Stock Options 463 443
Other 789 695
1,871 3,550
Valuation allowance (747 (1,399
Total current deferred tax ass $ 1,130 $ 2,156
Noncurrent deferred tax assets:
Research and development tax credit $ 526 $ 598
Alternative minimum tax credit 233 297
Deferred revenue 1,884 3,978
Property and equipment 2,059 2,006
Net operating loss carryforwar— domestic 39,541 36,445
Other — 60
44,243 43,384
Valuation allowance (17,4979 (17,026
Total noncurrent deferred tax ass $ 26,746 $ 26,358
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The components of the income tax expense (beaeéitas follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2012 2013
Current income tax expense (benefit):
Federal $ 37 $ 41 3 95
State 90 140 62
Foreign 38 33 26
Total current expense (bene 165 214 183
Deferred income tax expense (benefit):
Federal 977 560 (583)
State 79 46 (54)
Foreign — — —
Total deferred expense (bene 1,056 606 (637)
Total income tax expense (benefit) $ 1,221 $ 820 $ (454)

The Company's income tax expense (benefit) rgjatinncome (loss) for the periods presented
differs from the amounts that would result from lgpyy the federal statutory rate to that incomesghoas
follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2012 2013
Statutory federal tax rate 34 % 34 % 34 %
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 3 % 4 % 3 %
Non-controlling interest in Heska Imaging US, LLC — — 6 %
Other permanent differences 3 % 6 % (10) %
Change in tax rate (4) % (1) % — %
Foreign rate difference (D) % (1) % (1) %
Change in valuation allowance (137 % (638 % (13) %
Other 138 % 637 % 13 %
Effective income tax rate 36 % 41 % 33 %

ASC 740 provides detailed guidance for the finalngiatement recognition, measurement and
disclosure of uncertain tax positions recognizeth@financial statements. Tax positions must ra€ebore-
likely-than-not" recognition threshold before a b&is recognized in the financial statements. oAs
December 31, 2013, the Company has not recordedibty for uncertain tax positions. The Company
would recognize interest and penalties relatecht®rtain tax positions in income tax (benefit)/enge No
interest and penalties related to uncertain takipos were accrued at December 31, 2013.

7. CAPITAL STOCK
Sock Option Plans

The Company has two stock option plans which aizb@ranting of stock options and stock
purchase rights to employees, officers, directats@nsultants of the Company to purchase shares of
common stock. In 1997, the board of directors &tbthe 1997 Stock Incentive Plan (the "1997 Plan
terminated two prior option plans. All shares tleahained available for grant under the terminatads
were incorporated into the 1997 Plan, includingetaubsequently cancelled under prior plans. dg M
2012, the stockholders approved an amendment tba@ig Plan allowing for an increase of 250,000 eshar
and an annual increase through 2016 based on thkeamwof non-employee directors serving as of the
Company's Annual Meeting of Stockholders, subjeet maximum of 45,000 shares per year. In May 2003
the stockholders approved a new plan, the 2003t tndentive Plan, which allows for the granting of
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options for up to 239,050 shares of the Comparyisncon stock. The number of shares reserved for
issuance under both plans as of January 1, 2012¥%W&g507.

The stock options granted by the board of direatoaiy be either incentive stock options ("1ISOs") or
non-qualified stock options ("NQs"). The exergisiee for options under all of the plans may bdass than
100% of the fair value of the underlying commorckttor ISOs or 85% of fair value for NQs. Options
granted will expire no later than the tenth anrsaey subsequent to the date of grant or three rmonth
following termination of employment, except in ce®é death or disability, in which case the optianlé
remain exercisable for up to twelve months. Unberterms of the 1997 Plan, in the event the Comgn
sold or merged, outstanding options will eithelalssumed by the surviving corporation or vest imiaediy.

There are four key inputs to the Black-Scholes rmadiich the Company uses to estimate fair value
for options which it issues: expected term, expketdatility, risk-free interest rate and expectidddends,
all of which require the Company to make estimaiBise Company's estimates for these inputs mapaot
indicative of actual future performance and chanigesy of these inputs can have a material impache
resulting estimated fair value calculated for than. The Company's expected term input was astich
based on the Company's historical experiencerwg from option grant to option exercise for all éoypes
in 2011, 2012 and 2013; the Company treated all@reps in one grouping in all three years. The
Company's expected volatility input was estimatasieldl on the Company's historical stock price \itjaiin
2011, 2012 and 2013. The Company's risk-freeastanate input was determined based on the U.&slirg
yield curve at the time of option issuance in 212 and 2013. The Company's expected dividerpg i
were zero in 2011, 4.3% in 2012 and zero in 204&ighted average assumptions used in 2011, 2012 and
2013 for each of these four key inputs are listethé following table:

2011 2012 2013
Risk-free interest rate 0.64% 0.38% 0.75%
Expected lives 3.0 years 3.0 years 3.4 years
Expected volatility 70% 57% 46%
Expected dividend yield 0% 4.3% 0%

A summary of the Company's stock option plans,wknly options to purchase fractional shares
resulting from the Company's December 2010 1-forel@rse stock split, is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2012 2013

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Options Price Options Price Options Price

Outstanding at beginning of period 1,341,876 $11.003 1,448,675 $ 10.425 1,245,161 $11.054
Granted at Market 187,750 $ 6.962 137,950 $ 9.534 275,654 $ 7.532
Cancelled (73,871 $12.684 (118,330 $ 11.373 (166,286 $11.437
Exercised (7,080 $ 4.564 (223,134 $ 5.863 (33,297 $ 6.488
Outstanding at end of period 1,448,675  $10.425 1,245,161 $ 11.054 1,321,232 $10.386
Exercisable at end of period 1,175,731 $11.427 971,029 $ 12.129 939,458 $11.556

The total estimated fair value of stock optionsged during the years ended December 31, 2011,
2012 and 2013 were computed to be approximatel® #6@usand, $402 thousand and $701 thousand,
respectively. The amounts are amortized ratabdy the vesting periods of the options. The weighte
average estimated fair value of options grantethduhe years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 arfél 201
was computed to be approximately $3.21, $2.92 @rg4$respectively. The total intrinsic value ptions
exercised during the years ended December 31, 2012, and 2013 was $10 thousand, $1.1 million and
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$42 thousand, respectively. The cash proceedsdmiions exercised during the years ended Dece@iher
2011, 2012 and 2013 was $32 thousand, $263 thowsah#i161 thousand.

The following table summarizes information abooatktoptions outstanding and exercisable at
December 31, 2013, excluding outstanding optionsitchase an aggregate of 74.1 fractional shares
resulting from the Company's December 2010 1-forel@rse stock split with a weighted average remgin
contractual life of 1.24 years, a weighted avemgacise price of $13.72 and exercise prices rgnigom
$4.40 to $30.20. The Company intends to issue evbiohres only from option exercises.

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Number of Weighted Number of
Options Average Options

Outstanding Remaining Weighted Exercisable Weighted

at Contractual Average at Average

December 31, Life in Exercise December 31, Exercise

Exercise Prices 2013 Years Price 2013 Price

$ 270-% 6.76 231,048 5.38 $ 5.030 203,010 $ 4.974
$677-% 7.36 302,667 8.69 $ 7.214 55,838 $ 6.941
$ 737-% 876 203,314 7.47 $ 8.446 104,266 $ 8.408
$ 8.77 - $12.50 293,193 243 $ 10.764 285,334 $ 10.789
$12.51 - $30.20 291,010 1.80 $ 18.912 291,010 $ 18.912
$ 2.70 - $30.20 1,321,232 5.02 $ 10.386 939,458 $ 11.556

As of December 31, 2013, there was $935 thousatataifunrecognized compensation expense
related to outstanding stock options. That coskfgected to be recognized over a weighted-averaged
of 2.2 years with all cost to be recognized byahd of November 2017, assuming all options vestraiaog
to the vesting schedules in place at December@13.2As of December 31, 2013, the aggregate sitrin
value of outstanding options was $1.4 million amg dggregate intrinsic value of exercisable optivas
$892 thousand.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "ESPP")

Under the 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, thgp@oay is authorized to issue up to 375,000
shares of common stock to its employees, of whith3®2 had been issued as of December 31, 2013.
Employees of the Company who are expected to widdaat 20 hours per week and five months per gear
eligible to participate. Under the terms of tharplemployees can choose to have up to 10% ofdhainal
base earnings withheld to purchase the Compangisnom stock. During the period from January 1, 2(@11
June 30, 2013, the Company's ESPP had a five-yiesing period and six-month accumulation periods
ending on each June 30 and December 31. The parghi@e of stock on June 30 and December 31 was
85% of the fair market value at purchase.

Beginning on July 1, 2013, the Company's ESPP Ha@raonth offering period and three-month
accumulation periods ending on each March 31, 30n&eptember 30 and December 31. The purchase
price of stock on March 31, June 30, Septembemn8@seecember 31 was subject to a minimum price &6 65
of the fair market value at purchase but othenthedesser of (i) 95% of the fair market valuehat t
beginning of the applicable offering period or 8§% of the fair market value at the time of pusghaln
addition, participating employees may purchaseeshander the ESPP at the beginning of an applicable
offering period for a purchase price of stock eqad@5% of the fair market value at such time d6 gim on a
day other than March 31, June 30, September 3Dandmber 31 during the applicable offering permoaf
purchase price of stock equal to 95% of the fairkeiavalue at purchase.

-62-



HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Since July 1, 2013, the Company has estimatedaihgdlues of stock purchase rights granted under
the ESPP in 2013 using the Black-Scholes pricindehand the following weighted average assumptions:

2013
Risk-free interest rate 0.21%
Expected lives 1.3 years
Expected volatility 34%
Expected dividend yield 0%

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 arg] gl weighted-average fair value of the
purchase rights granted was $1.09, $1.45 and $28hare, respectively.

8. MAJOR CUSTOMERS

One customer represented approximately 13% of dmpany's 2011 revenue. One customer
represented approximately 13% of the Company's 2&léhue. One customer represented approximately
29% of the Company's accounts receivable at Deceihe2012. One customer represented approximately
16%, and another customer represented 12% of theo@uy's accounts receivable at December 31, 2043. N
other customers represented 10% or more of reven@®11, 2012 or 2013 nor 10% or more of accounts
receivable at December 31, 2012 or December 313.201

9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company holds certain rights to market and rizeture all products developed or created under
certain research, development and licensing agnetsméth various entities. In connection with such
agreements, the Company has agreed to pay thizeentiyalties on net product sales. In the yeaded
December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, royalties of $sd3sand, $503 thousand and $391 thousand became
payable under these agreements, respectively.

The Company has contracts with suppliers for unitimmal annual minimum inventory purchases
and milestone obligations to third parties the Camypbelieves are likely to be triggered currenialing
approximately $8.0 million for fiscal 2014, $1.5lkoin for fiscal 2015, $1.6 million for fiscal 201&nd
$1.6 million for fiscal 2017.

The Company has entered into operating leasessfoffice and research facilities and certain
equipment with future minimum payments as of Decan®i, 2013 as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31,

2014 $ 1,760
2015 1,619
2016 1,594
2017 1,571
2018 1,457
Thereafter 7,240

$ 15241

The Company had rent expense of $1.8 million, #iilBon and $1.8 million in 2011, 2012 and
2013, respectively.
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From time to time, the Company may be involvedtigdtion relating to claims arising out of its
operations. At December 31, 2013, the Companyngaa party to any legal proceedings that were
expected, individually or in the aggregate, to haveaterial adverse effect on our business, fignci
condition or operating results.

The Company's current terms and conditions ofisalade a limited warranty that its products and
services will conform to published specificationshe time of shipment and a more extensive wayrant
related to certain of its products. The Compasy aklls a renewal warranty for certain of its picid. The
typical remedy for breach of warranty is to correcteplace any defective product, and if not guesor
practical, the Company will accept the return & tlefective product and refund the amount paid.
Historically, the Company has incurred minimal veautly costs. The Company's warranty reserve on
December 31, 2013 was $451 thousand.

10. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company is comprised of two reportable segmé&use Companion Animal Health ("CCA")
and Other Vaccines, Pharmaceuticals and Produ@igR"). The Core Companion Animal Health segment
includes diagnostic instruments and supplies, disasesingle use diagnostic and other tests, phegataals
and vaccines, primarily for canine and feline usbe CCA segment also includes digital radiogragg
ultrasound products along with embedded softwadesapport, data hosting and other services fronk#les
Imaging after February 24, 2013. These produesald directly by the Company as well as through
independent third-party distributors and throudheotistribution relationships. CCA segment praduc
manufactured at the Des Moines, lowa productioitifipincluded in the OVP segment's assets are
transferred at cost and are not recorded as reventlee OVP segment. The Other Vaccines,
Pharmaceuticals and Products segment includes@iaael vaccine and pharmaceutical production,
primarily for cattle, but also for other animalglinding small mammals. All OVP products are sojdhird
parties under third-party labels.

Summarized financial information concerning the @any's reportable segments is shown in the
following table (in thousands):
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2011

Total revenue

Operating income

Interest expense

Total assets

Net assets

Capital expenditures
Depreciation and amortization

2012

Total revenue

Operating income

Interest expense

Total assets

Net assets

Capital expenditures
Depreciation and amortization

2013:

Total revenue

Operating income (loss)
Interest expense

Total assets

Net assets

Capital expenditures
Depreciation and amortization

Core
Companion  Other Vaccines,
Animal Pharmaceuticals
Health and Products Total
$57,481 $ 12,584 $ 70,065
1,564 1,685 3,249
107 17 124
51,172 10,722 61,894
40,435 8,004 48,439
495 589 1,084
1,192 860 2,052
Core
Companion  Other Vaccines,
Animal Pharmaceuticals
Health and Products Total
$61,502 $ 11,303 $ 72,805
1,160 998 2,158
91 26 117
55,071 11,755 66,826
39,726 9,136 48,862
634 875 1,509
862 837 1,699
Core
Companion  Other Vaccines,
Animal Pharmaceuticals
Health and Products Total
$66,404 $ 11,935 78,339
(2,295 865 (1,430
45 29 74
81,041 12,512 93,553
37,732 9,384 47,116
512 1,418 1,930
1,691 806 2,497

Total revenue by principal geographic area waskeas (in thousands):

United States
Europe

Other International
Total

For the Years Ended December 31,

2011 2012 2013
$ 60,383 $ 64,552 % 71,713
3,408 2,996 2,738
6,274 5,257 3,888
$ 70,065 $ 72,805 % 78,339

-65-



HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Total assets by principal geographic areas wefellasvs (in thousands):

December 31,

2011 2012 2013
United States $ 58,984 % 63,980 $ 90,572
Europe 2,910 2,846 2,981
Other International — — —
Total $ 61,894 % 66,826 $ 93,553

11. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (unaudited)

The following summarizes selected quarterly finaheiformation for each of the two years in the
periods ended December 31, 2012 and 2013 (amoutitsuisands, except per share data).

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total
2012:

Total revenue $ 19,175 $ 18,271 $ 16,906 $ 18,453 $ 72,805
Gross profit 8,923 8,048 6,726 7,404 31,101
Operating income (loss) 1,082 383 (27 720 2,158
Net income (loss) 584 262 32 389 1,203
Net income (loss) attributable to Heska

Corporation 584 262 32 389 1,203
Basic net income (loss) per share

attributable to Heska Corporation 0.11 0.05 (0.0) 0.07 0.23
Diluted net income (loss) per share

attributable to Heska Corporation 0.11 0.05 (0.0) 0.07 0.22

2013:

Total revenue $ 18,979 $ 18,261 $ 17,595 $ 23,504 $ 78,339
Gross profit 7,802 5,020 7,406 10,404 30,632
Operating income (loss) (682 (3,578 75 2,755 (1,430
Net income (loss) (352 (2,467 (18) 1,898 (939
Net income (loss) attributable to Heska

Corporation (386 (2,228 241 1,177 (1,199
Basic net income (loss) per share

attributable to Heska Corporation (0.09 (0.38 0.04 0.20 (0.2)
Diluted net income (loss) per share

attributable to Heska Corporation (0.09 (0.38 0.04 0.20 (0.2)
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Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Account#&mon Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our cleedcutive officer and our chief financial officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure otsaind procedures, as defined by Rule 13a-15eof th
Exchange Act, as of December 31, 2013. Basedis®taluation, our chief executive officer and €hie
financial officer have concluded that our discl@soontrols and procedures are effective to provide
reasonable assurance that information we are estjtordisclose in reports that we file or submiemthe
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegadted within the time periods specified in 8&C's
rules and forms and that such information is acdated and communicated to our management, including
our chief executive officer and chief financialioffr, as appropriate, to allow timely decisionsaregng
disclosure.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finarat Reporting.

Our management is responsible for establishinghaaidtaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15( 45d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Under the
supervision and with the participation of our magragnt, including our chief executive officer andeth
financial officer, the Company conducted an evadmatdf the effectiveness of its internal controbov
financial reporting based on criteria outlinedhi 11992 COSO Internal Control over Financial Repgrt
Guidance for Smaller Public Companies, a suppleahémplementation guide issued in 2007 which
modified criteria established in the frameworkriternal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tred@ommission. Based on this evaluation, the
Company's management has concluded that the Corfapatgrnal control over financial reporting was
effective as of December 31, 2013.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohawver financial reporting may not prevent or déte
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisks
that controls may become inadequate because ofjekam conditions, or that the degree of compliamite
the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Accmlgli even an effective system of internal contvidl
provide only reasonable assurance that the obgscot/the internal control system are met.

This annual report does not include an attestaidport of our independent registered public
accounting firm regarding internal control overdintial reporting. Management's report was notesiitip
attestation by our independent registered publioaating firm pursuant to rules of the Securitied a
Exchange Commission that permit us to provide omyagement's report in this annual report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportm

With the exception of the acquisition of Heska linggan entity of which we acquired a majority
interest in 2013, there has been no change imtermial control over financial reporting during floeirth
fiscal quarter covered by this Form 10-K that hasemally affected, or is reasonably likely to miatty
affect, our internal control over financial repagi As part of the supply agreement between Heskging
and Cuattro, LLC, Cuattro, LLC is to provide accong services to Heska Imaging for at least one yea
following the commencement of the agreement. éfitst quarter of 2014, we assumed responsibiityhe
accounting, as well as the disclosure controlspandedures and internal control over financial répg, for
Heska Imaging, which we believe will result in grsficant improvement in Heska Imaging's disclosure
controls and procedures and internal control owamtcial reporting.
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Note Regarding Acquisition

In making our assessment of disclosure controlspapckedures and internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2013, we have excltiiedperations of Heska Imaging, an entity of Wwhie
acquired a majority interest in 2013. As parthef supply agreement between Heska Imaging andrGuatt
LLC, Cuattro, LLC is to provide accounting serviteddeska Imaging for at least one year following t
commencement of the agreement. In the first quaft2014, we assumed responsibility for the actiogn
as well as the disclosure controls and procedur@srdernal control over financial reporting, foeska
Imaging, which we believe will result in a signdiat improvement in Heska Imaging's disclosure aisitr
and procedures and internal control over finamgipbrting. Heska Imaging represents approximétélg%o
of our 2013 revenue, Heska Imaging goodwill aneépthtangibles represent 21.8% of our total assetsf
December 31, 2013 and other Heska Imaging asggessent 9.0% of our total assets as of December 31,
2013.

Iltem 9B. Other Information.
None.
PART Il
Certain information required by Part Ill is incorpted by reference to our definitive Proxy Stateimen
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioadnnection with the solicitation of proxies far®014
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporte Governance.

Executive Officers

The information required by this item with respecexecutive officers is incorporated by reference
to Item 1 of this report and can be found underctation "Executive Officers of the Registrant.”

Directors

The information required by this section with resige our directors will be incorporated by
reference to the information in the sections eatitlElection of Directors" and "Section 16(a) Beciaf
Ownership Reporting Compliance" in the Proxy Statein

Code of Ethics

Our Board of Directors has adopted a code of efbicsur senior executive and financial officers
(including our principal executive officer, prinaikfinancial officer and principal accounting ofig. The
code of ethics is available on our website at wvaska.com. We intend to disclose any amendmems to
waivers from the code of ethics at that location.

Audit Committee

The information required by this section with resige our Audit Committee will be incorporated by
reference to the information in the section erditiBoard Structure and Committees" in the Proxyestent.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compince

The information required by this item is incorpecby reference to the information in the section
entitled "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership RepgriCompliance" in the Proxy Statement.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this section will beanporated by reference to the information in the
sections entitled "Director Compensation," "ExeéetCompensation,” "Compensation Committee Report"
and "Compensation Committee Interlocks and IndRdeticipation” in the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiaDwners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

The other information required by this section Wil incorporated by reference to the information in
the section entitled "Common Stock Ownership ofté@eBeneficial Owners and Management" in the Proxy
Statement.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth information about dommon stock that may be issued upon exercise
of options and rights under all of our equity comgegion plans as of December 31, 2013, includiedl888
Stock Option Plan, the 1997 Stock Incentive Plae,2003 Stock Incentive Plan and the 1997 Employee
Stock Purchase Plan. Our stockholders have apgalief these plans.

(c) Number of Securities

(a) Number of Securities (b) Weighted-Average Remaining Available for Future
to be Issued Upon Exercise Price of Issuance Under Equity
Exercise of Outstanding Outstanding Options Compensation Plans (excluding
Plan Category Options and Rights (1) and Rights (1) securities reflected in column (a))

Equity Compensation Plans

Approved by

Stockholders 1,321,232 $10.39 307,185
Equity Compensation Plans

Not Approved by

Stockholders None None None
Total 1,321,232 $10.39 307,185

(1) Excluding outstanding options to purchase agregpte of 74.1 fractional shares resulting from@ecember 2010 reverse stock
split.

Iltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transadimons and Director Independence.

The information required by this section will beanporated by reference to the information in the
sections entitled "Board Structures and Committees!''Significant Relationships and Transactiorth wi
Directors, Officers or Principal Stockholders" iretProxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information required by this section will bednporated by reference to the information in the
section entitled "Auditor Fees and Services" inRinexy Statement.

The information required by Part Il to the extet set forth herein, will be incorporated hereyn b
reference to our definitive Proxy Statement for20&4 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedute
(@) The following documents are filed as a pathdf Form 10-K.

(1) Financial Statements:

Reference is made to the Index to Consolidatedn€inaStatements under Item 8 in Part Il
of this Form 10-K.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules:
Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts.
SCHEDULE I
HESKA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(amounts in thousands)

Additions
Balance at Charged to
Beginning Costs and Other Balance at
of Year Expenses  Additions Deductions  End of Year
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Year ended:
December 31, 2011 $ 136 $ 109 — $ 7)Y @ % 174
December 31, 2012 $ 174  $ 76 — $ 95 @ $ 155
December 31, 2013 $ 155 % 98 — $ 48 @ % 209

(a) Write-offs of uncollectible accounts.
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(3) Exhibits:

The exhibits listed below are required by Item 60Regulation S-K. Each management contract or
compensatory plan or arrangement required to bd &k an exhibit to this Form 10-K has been idetif

Exhibit
Number Notes Description of Document
2.1 (22) Unit Purchase Agreement among the RegistCuattro Veterinary USA, LLC,
Kevin S. Wilson and Continuing Members of Cuattretéfinary USA, LLC
named on the signature page thereto, dated Feli2@aB013.
3(i) a7 Restated Certificate of Incorporationioé Registrant.
3(ii) a7) Certificate of Amendment to Restatedtifieate of Incorporation of
Registrant.
3(iii) a7 Certificate of Amendment to the RestCertificate of Incorporation, as
amended, of Registrant.
3(iv) Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Regyidtras amended.
3(v) an Amended and Restated Operating Agreewigdeska Imaging US, LLC.
10.1* 1997 Stock Incentive Plan of Registrantaaended and restated.
10.2* 9) 1997 Stock Incentive Plan Employees andgdltants Option Agreement.
10.3* (9) 1997 Stock Incentive Plan Outside DirestOption Agreement.
10.4* (12) 2003 Equity Incentive Plan, as amendadirastated.
10.5* (12) 2003 Equity Incentive Plan Employees @uodisultants Option Agreement.
10.6* 2003 Equity Incentive Plan Outside DirectOqstion Agreement.
10.7* (18) 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan ofdRegt, as amended and restated.
10.8* (8) Management Incentive Plan Master Document
10.9* 2013 Management Incentive Plan Document.
10.10* 2014 Management Incentive Plan Document.
10.11* a7 Director Compensation Policy.
10.12* (20) Form of Indemnification Agreement eetéinto between Registrant and its
directors and certain officers.
10.13* Employment Agreement (Executive Chair) vihbert B. Grieve, effective as
of March 26, 2014.
10.14* Restricted Stock Grant Agreements betwesgidRant and Robert B. Grieve,
effective as of March 26, 2014.
10.15* Consulting Agreement (Founder Emeritushvibbert B. Grieve, dated
March 26, 2014.
10.16* Employment Agreement between Registrantkndn S. Wilson, effective as
of March 26, 2014.
10.17* Restricted Stock Grant Agreement betweegidR@nt and Kevin S. Wilson,
effective as of March 26, 2014.
10.18* (4) Employment Agreement between Registasudt Jason A. Napolitano, effective
as of May 6, 2002.
10.19* (20) Amendment to Employment Agreement betwRegistrant and Jason A.
Napolitano, effective as of January 1, 2008.
10.20* (9) Employment Agreement between DiamondaliHealth, Inc. and Michael J.
McGinley, effective as of May 1, 2000.
10.21* (10) Amendment to Employment Agreement betwbiamond Animal Health, Inc.
and Michael J. McGinley, effective as of Januarg2dQ8.
10.22* (24) Assignment and Second Amendment to Bympént Agreement between
Registrant and Michael J. McGinley, effective ag\afjust 4, 2011.
10.23* Employment Agreement between Registrant@teglen M. Eyl, effective as of
May 15, 2013.
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10.24*

10.25*

10.26*

10.27~*

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32+

10.33+

10.34+

10.35

10.36+

10.37+

10.38+

10.39+

10.40+

10.41+

10.42+

10.43+

10.44+

(9)
(10)
(17)
(17)

(6)

(7)

(7)
(16)

(9)

(10)

(10)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(15)

(15)

(16)

(16)

7)

(21)

(1)

Employment Agreement between Registazudt Nancy Wisnewski, effective
as of April 15, 2002.

Amendment to Employment Agreement betwRegistrant and Nancy
Wisnewski, effective as of January 1, 2008.

Employment Agreement between Registant Steven M. Asakowicz,
effective as of February 22, 2013.

Employment Agreement between Registant Rodney A. Lippincott,
effective as of February 22, 2013.

Net Lease Agreement between RegistrahC&MRED 40, LLC, effective as
of May 24, 2004.

First Amendment to Net Lease Agreemedt2evelopment Agreement
between Registrant and CCMRED 40, LLC, dated Feiprizh, 2005.

Second Amendment to Net Lease Agreenantden Registrant and
CCMRED 40, LLC, dated July 14, 2005.

Third Amendment to Net Lease Agreement/ben Registrant and Millbrae
Square Company, effective as of January 1, 2010.

Third Amended and Restated Credit ardi8g Agreement between
Registrant, Diamond Animal Health, Inc. and Wellsgo Business Credit,
Inc., dated December 30, 2005.

First Amendment to Third Amended andt®ed Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tihh and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated December 5, 2006.

Second Amendment to Third Amended agstd®ed Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tihh and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated July 20, 2007.

Third Amendment to Third Amended andt&esl Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tih and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated December 21, 2007

Fourth and Fifth Amendments to Thirdekded and Restated Credit and
Security Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Ahidealth, Inc. and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, dated Oetdts, 2008.

Sixth Amendment to Third Amended andt&®ed Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tih and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated December 30, 2008

Seventh Amendment to Third AmendedRestated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tith and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated November 30, 2009

Eighth Amendment to Third Amended aedt&ted Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tth and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated December 15, 2010

Ninth Amendment to Third Amended andtRed Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tth and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated December 21, 2011

Tenth Amendment to Third Amended anst&ed Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tth and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated February 9, 2012.

Eleventh Amendment to Third Amended Redtated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tih and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, dated November 5, 2012.

Twelfth Amendment to Third Amended &wesbtated Credit and Security
Agreement between Registrant, Diamond Animal He#tih, Heska Imaging
US, LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, National Associatidated August 13, 2013.

Product Supply Agreement between Regisand Quidel Corporation,
effective as of July 3, 1997.
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10.45+

10.46

10.47+

10.48+

10.49+

10.50+

10.51+

10.52+

10.53+

10.54+

10.55

10.56+

10.57+

10.58+

10.59+

10.60+

10.61+

(2)
(12)

3)

(5)

(9)

(9)

(10)

(13)

(16)

(18)

(9)

(11)

(14)
(19)
(9)
(12)

First Amendment to Product Supply Agreetibetween Registrant and Quidel
Corporation, effective as of March 15, 1999.

Letter Amendment to Product Supply Agreet between Registrant and
Quidel Corporation dated July 7, 2004.

Amended and Restated Bovine Vaccingibigton Agreement between
Diamond Animal Health, Inc. and Agri Laboratorieg]., effective as of
September 30, 2002.

First Amendment to Amended and RestBtadne Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of September 20, 2004.

Second Amendment to Amended and RedBaieithe VVaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of December 10, 2004.

Third Amendment to Amended and RestBt®dne Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of May 26, 2006.

Fourth Amendment to Amended and ResBéxine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of November 16, 2007.

Fifth Amendment to Amended and RedtBvine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of December 23, 2010.

Sixth Amendment to Amended and Restamdhe Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of July 25, 2011.

Seventh Amendment to Amended and RekBdvine Vaccine Distribution
Agreement between Diamond Animal Health, Inc. agd Aaboratories, Ltd.,
effective as of February 1, 2013.

Assignment and Assumption Agreement beti@amond Animal Health,
Inc., Agri Laboratories, Ltd. and Eli Lilly and Cgrany (acting through its
Elanco Animal Health Division), effective as of Nowber 7, 2013.

Supply and Distribution Agreement betwBegistrant and Boule Medical AB,
effective as of June 17, 2003; Letter Amendmer8upply and Distribution
Agreement between Registrant and Boule Medical de®ed June 1, 2004; and
Letter Amendment to Supply and Distribution Agreeirigetween Registrant
and Boule Medical AB, dated December 31, 2004.

Letter Amendment to Supply and Distiitlru Agreement between Registrant
and Boule Medical AB, dated July 12, 2005; Lettenefdment to Supply and
Distribution Agreement between Registrant and Boddglical AB, dated
March 20, 2007; Letter Amendment to Supply andrihistion Agreement
between Registrant and Boule Medical AB, dated dgn3, 2008; and Sixth
Amendment to Supply and Distribution Agreement et Registrant and
Boule Medical AB, effective as of October 1, 2008.

Seventh Amendment to Supply and Digtidgin Agreement between Registrant
and Boule Medical AB, effective as of June 1, 2011.

Eighth Amendment to Supply and Distiiliu Agreement between Registrant
and Boule Medical AB, effective as of January 1120

Supply and License Agreement betweerisiRagt and Schering-Plough
Animal Health Corporation, effective as of Augus2003.

Amendment No. 1 to Supply and LicengeeAment between Registrant and
Schering-Plough Animal Health Corporation, effeetas of August 31, 2005.
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10.62+

10.63+

10.64+

10.65+

10.66+

10.67+

10.68+

21.1

23.1

24.1
31.1

31.2

32.1*

101.INS

101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.PRE
101.LAB

Notes

+

1)
()
3
4
®)
(6)
()
8
(9)

(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)

(17)

(21)

(10)
(17)
(17)

(20)

Amendment No. 2 to Supply and Licengee@ment between Registrant and
Intervet Inc., d/b/a Merck Animal Health, effectime of December 7, 2011.

Amendment No. 3 to Supply and LicengeeAment between Registrant and
Intervet Inc., d/b/a Merck Animal Health, effectiae of July 30, 2013.
Amendment No. 4 to Supply and License Agerg between Registrant and
Intervet Inc., d/b/a Merck Animal Health, effectise of December 9, 2013.

Clinical Chemistry Analyzer Agreemeatween Registrant and FUJIFILM
Corporation, effective as of January 30, 2007.

Amended and Restated Master Licenseekgent between Heska Imaging US,
LLC and Cuattro, LLC, effective as of February 20813.

Supply Agreement between Cuattro, LLC and dskaging US, LLC
effective as of February 24, 2013.

Asset Purchase and License Agreeménwtba Diamond Animal Health, Inc.,
and Elanco Animal Health, a division of Eli Lillynd Company effective as of
June 17, 2013.

Subsidiaries of the Company.

Consent of EKS&H LLLP PC, Independent RegéstdPublic Accounting
Firm.

Power of Attorney (See Signature Page offtbrsn 10-K).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Puest to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule
15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, as anende
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Puet to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule
15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, as angnde
Certification of Chief Executive Officer drChief Financial Officer Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to SectioroB0®e Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.

XBRL Instance Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation LinldeaDocument.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linklga®ocument.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation LasgdDocument.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Datent.

Indicates management contract or compensatory glarrangement.

Portions of the exhibit have been omitted punstm a request for confidential treatment.
Furnished herewith but not filed.

Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thearter ended September 30, 1997.
Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for §ear ended December 31, 2001.
Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thearter ended September 30, 2002.
Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for §ear ended December 31, 2002.
Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thearter ended September 30, 2004.
Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for §ear ended December 31, 2004.
Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thearter ended June 30, 2005.

Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thearter ended March 31, 2006.
Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for §ear ended December 31, 2006.

Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for tresar ended December 31, 2007.
Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thearter ended September 30, 2008.
Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for tfesar ended December 31, 2008.
Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for ffemar ended December 31, 2010.
Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thearter ended June 30, 2011.

Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thaarter ended September 30, 2011.
Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for ffemar ended December 31, 2011.
Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-K for tfesar ended December 31, 2012.
Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thearter ended March 31, 2013.
Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for thearter ended June 30, 2013.

Filed with the Registrant's Form 8-K/A on Asg9, 2013.

Filed with the Registrant's Form 10-Q for th&arter ended September 30, 2013.
Filed with the Registrant's Form 8-K on Feloyu26, 2013.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signets behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, on March 31, 2014.

HESKA CORPORATION

By: /s/ ROBERT B. GRIEVE
Robert B. Grieve, Ph.D.
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemsbose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints Robert B. Grieve, Pha3od A. Napolitano and Nancy Wisnewski, Ph.D., and
each of them, his or her true and lawful attorneyfct, each with full power of substitution, foim or her
in any and all capacities, to sign any amendmaentisi$ report on Form 10-K and to file the samehwi
exhibits thereto and other documents in connedlierewith, with the Securities and Exchange Comioniss
hereby ratifying and confirming all that each ofdsattorneys-in-fact or their substitute or sulgés may do
or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the SecuritiesEaxatiange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Riegnt and in the capacities and on the datesaneiil:

Signature Title Date
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
/s ROBERT B. GRIEVE Officer (Principal Executive Officer) and
Robert B. Grieve, Ph.D. Director March 31, 2014
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
[s/ JASON A. NAPOLITANO Officer and Secretary (Principal Financial March 31, 2014
Jason A. Napolitano Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)
/sl WILLIAM A. AYLESWORTH Lead Director

William A. Aylesworth March 31, 2014

/s/ G. IRWIN GORDON Director
G. Irwin Gordon

March 31, 2014

/sl SHARON L. RILEY Director
Sharon L. Riley

March 31, 2014

/s/ DAVID E. SVEEN Director
David E. Sveen, Ph.D.

March 31, 2014

/s/ CAROL A. WRENN Director
Carol A. Wrenn

March 31, 2014
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